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CORPORATE PROFILE
NG ) Ry

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”
or “Sunny Optical Technology”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) (Stock Code: 2382.HK) is a global leading integrated
optical components and products manufacturer with more than thirty-
five years of history. The Group is principally engaged in the design,
research and development (the “R&D”), manufacture and sales of
optical and optical-related products. Such products include optical
components (such as glass spherical and aspherical lenses, plane
products, handset lens sets, vehicle lens sets, security surveillance
lens sets and other various lens sets) (the “Optical Components”),
optoelectronic products (such as handset camera modules, three
dimensional (the “3D”) optoelectronic products, vehicle modules and
other optoelectronic modules) (the “Optoelectronic Products”) and
optical instruments (such as microscopes and intelligent equipment
for testing) (the “Optical Instruments”). The Group focuses on
the application fields of optoelectronic-related products, such as
handsets, digital cameras, vehicle imaging and sensing systems,
security surveillance systems, virtual reality (‘VR”)/ augmented reality
(“AR”) and automated factories, which are combined with optical,
electronic, software and mechanical technologies.
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Financial Summary
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MAIN FINANCIAL INDEXES IN 2019
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

L FETBEHME

Financial Summary

PR

(In Renminbi (‘RMB’) million, except per share amounts) (A R B &L » #5881

For the year ended 31 December

Et=A=t+-ALFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E—REF —N\F | ZE—+F — N4
Consolidated
BE
Operating results K& ¥£4&
Revenue WA 37,848.7 25,931.9 22,366.3 14,611.8 10,696.2
Gross profit 7| 7,750.7 4,913.1 4,802.8 2,680.1 1,763.4
Finance costs @& A A (250.4) (202.1) (48.8) (16.2) (16.0)
Profit before tax & %3 A& Fl 4,550.4 2,851.3 3,318.3 1,446.4 862.3
Income tax expense FT5Fi X (531.0) (338.6) (404.2) (174.8) (98.8)
Profit for the year FR#EF) 4,019.4 2512.7 2,914 .1 1,271.6 763.5
Attributable to: 538 :
— Owners of the Company
¥iNNE )23 3,991.3 2,490.9 2,901.6 1,270.8 761.6
- Non- controlling interests
eI i 28.1 21.8 12.5 0.8 1.9
4,019.4 2,512.7 2,914.1 1,271.6 763.5
Earnings per share - Basic (in RMB)
BREF - ER(ARHE) 3.65 2.28 2.67 1.18 0.71
Assets and liabilities EER &8
Non-current assets 3R ENE B 8,247.1 6,083.7 4,090.9 2,318.7 1,619.2
Current assets JRENEE 22,446.0 16,768.4 11,635.4 9,317.9 6,017.1
Total assets A& E 30,693.1 22,852.1 15,726.3 11,636.6 7,636.3
Bank borrowings $R1TEE 1,118.6 1,482.4 1,347.9 904.3 683.2
Bonds payable fEfT{E% 4,156.1 4,080.0 = = =
Other liabilities b & & 12,692.2 8,001.6 6,859.2 5,819.0 3,108.2
Total liabilities & & & 17,966.9 13,564.0 8,207.1 6,723.3 3,791.4
Net assets EEFEH 12,726.2 9,288.1 7,519.2 4,913.3 3,844.9
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
VNN ey 12,552.9 9,234 .1 7,488.5 4,895.3 3,831.0
Non-controlling interests JE1% I 25 173.3 54.0 30.7 18.0 13.9
Total equity #4258 12,726.2 9,288.1 7,5619.2 4,913.3 3,844.9
Key Financial Ratio = E&#§tb &
Gross profit margin (%) EF % (%) 20.5 18.9 21.5 18.3 16.5
Net profit margin (%) 75 /% (%) 10.6 9.7 13.0 8.7 7.1
Gearing ratio (%) B & E (%) 17.2 24.3 8.6 7.8 8.9
Current ratio (times) 7L = (%) 1.8 1.9 1.5 1.4 1.6
Quick ratio (times) R &t & () 1.4 1.6 1.2 1.0 1.4
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Mr. YE Liaoning
ERERSE

Dear Shareholders,

The Company is pleased to present to the shareholders the annual
report for the year of 2019. Taking advantages of the favourable
opportunities arising from the further upgrade of camera products
used in the smartphone industry and the rapid development of the
vehicle camera field, the Group achieved a favourable performance
growth and delivered promising returns for our shareholders in 2019.

06 Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ECHNOLOOY

BARR -

ARABRARSUBRREZ T NF2FR -
AEBEEBTEERETRTEBGEERTR
BRMEHBEGERAREEROR I ZH
R-ZZF-NFERRIFNEERER - RERREA
BT -



BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at 2019, the global economic growth continued to
slow down with intensifying trade tensions. The global trade fell into
a weak state. In particular, the volatile Sino-US trade dispute further
led to the sluggish momentum of economic growth in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”), but the overall economy
of the PRC showed a steady trend. For the smartphone industry,
competition among different brands remained fierce with the continued
market saturation, and overall sales volume momentum was sluggish.
According to the report issued by Canalys, a market analyst firm, the
shipment volume of smartphones for 2019 reached approximately
368.6 million units in China mainland market, representing a decrease
of approximately 6.8% compared to that of 2018. Nevertheless, by
seizing the opportunity of technology upgrade, several domestic top
smartphone brand manufacturers increased the number of cameras
adopted per smartphone and expanded their application scenarios
to improve the consumer experiences in taking pictures, videos and
3D sensing, thereby stimulating consumers’ demand for replacement.
Besides, 5G technologies become increasingly mature and the promotion
of their commercialisation is gradually expanded, which provides more
possibilities for the innovation of cameras’ specifications.

The sales volume of automobiles in the global market in 2019 recorded
a slight decrease with a flat overall performance. However, what cannot
be ignored is that under the trend of “New Four Modernizations”
represented by electrification, intelligence, connection and sharing, further
technological development of autonomous driving and Internet of Vehicles
will bring profound changes to the driving experience and promote the
continuous upgrade of cars. On one hand, various intelligent operating
systems are gradually penetrating from high-end car models to mid-end
car models. Consumers proactively add various intelligent safety devices
to their cars, so as to improve their driving experiences. On the other
hand, the governments of various countries have also adopted legislative
enforcement measures to improve road traffic safety. At present, driven
by factors such as policy, cross-boundary competition of Internet and
consumers’ demand, the advanced driver assistance systems (“ADAS”)
continue to rapidly increase the penetration rate and become one of
the fastest-growing sectors in the automotive electronics market. The
vehicle cameras, as one category of the important components of vehicle
imaging and sensing systems, will maintain a rapid growth in the coming
years.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

In spite of the complex and changeable external environment, with
leading technological advantages, diversified customer base, continued
adherence to the development strategy of “Thoroughly Refining the
Existing Advantageous Businesses” and in-depth advancement of talent
team construction, the Group achieved a relatively sound growth in its
overall performance and further consolidated the leading position in the
industry as an optical expert. As a global leading supplier of handset lens
sets and handset camera modules as well as the global largest supplier
of vehicle lens sets, the Group will continue to enjoy benefit.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2019, with concerted efforts of all employees and under the leadership
of an energetic, experienced and forward-looking management, the
Group always adhered to the core value of “Create Together”, and
actively practiced the employee-oriented development philosophy, the
professional ethics of honesty and dedication, the pursuit of the unity
of theory and practice, and the behavior style of quick response. The
market competitiveness of the Group’s various businesses has been
enhanced and it has achieved a satisfying business performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue increased
by approximately 46.0% to approximately RMB37,848.7 million. Profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately 60.2% to approximately RMB3,991.3 million. Besides,
the basic earnings per share increased by approximately 60.1%
to approximately RMB364.81 cents. The board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”) has proposed a final
dividend of approximately RMB0.728 (equivalent to HK$0.810) (2018:
approximately RMB0.568) per share.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes that the pursuit of sustainable development is an
important basis for enterprises to formulate mid- to long-term strategies.
Whether the Company can be built to last and whether it has stronger
long-term competitiveness in the market is related to whether the goal of
sustainable development can be achieved. Therefore, the Group complies
with various international environmental protection policies and regulations
in production and operation activities. Through technological innovation,
manufacturing reform and other methods, the Group aims to achieve
the goals of environmental protection and sustainable development. At
the same time, the Group adheres to contributing to the society on an
ongoing basis, actively devotes to the public welfare such as education
and charity, aids the construction of urban communities, and contributes
to the local economic and social development. The Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for 2019 of the Group will be published
on 22 June 2020, which will be available on the website of HKEXnews
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) (http://www.hkexnews.hk) or the website of the Group
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com).
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

OUTLOOK

Entering into 2020, the global economics is still facing many uncertainties,
such as the global economic and trade dispute, the global spread of
2019 novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") epidemic (“Epidemic”), the
presidential election campaign in the United States, the Brexit and
the geo-political conflict in the Middle East. The global economy and
financial market will still be influenced by such risk factors. However,
Chinese brands gradually have the strength to compete with top-tier
international brands in the smartphone market which has already been
in the stock era. Optics has become the focus of smartphone innovation,
and the optical industry also enters into a boom cycle in terms of rising
“quantity” and “price”. In the long run, with the rapid development and
widespread commercialization of applications such as 5G and artificial
intelligence, the smartphone market and the optoelectronic-related
fields will certainly usher in new development opportunities. Therefore,
leveraging on the broad development prospects of the optoelectronic
industry where the Group operates and the leading advantages as an
optical expert, the Group will seize the development opportunities and
growth potential of the optoelectronic industry and fully leverage on its
unique competitive advantages to further broaden the application fields
of products. The Group is committed to becoming a manufacturer of
integrated optical components and products and a strategic partner of
international renowned enterprises. The Group will reward shareholders
and society with continuous growth and good performance.

Looking forward, the Group will firmly implement the strategy of
“Mingpeijiao” ( [%ECA ] ) and create values for the customers. The
Group will also seize the new market opportunities and accelerate
the shift in driving forces for development to promote comprehensive
business development. The Group believes that there will be more
opportunities than challenges in the future. All employees will continue
to carry forward entrepreneurial spirit of hard work, innovative spirit of
keeping up with the times and the team spirit of solidarity, with a view to
ultimately achieving the corporate vision of a “Hundred-Year-Old Brand”.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 in the PRC in January 2020,
various emergency public health measures and actions have been
imposed by multiple provinces and municipalities in the PRC to curb
the spread of the Epidemic, including extending the Chinese Lunar
New Year holiday. As at the date of this annual report, the Group’s
four production bases in the PRC are located in Yuyao of Zhejiang
Province, Shanghai, Zhongshan of Guangdong Province and Xinyang
of Henan Province, respectively. The Group has not established
production bases in regions seriously affected by the Epidemic, such

as Hubei Province.

On 23 January 2020, the Group activated the first-level emergency
plan, which was executed under the leadership of the Chief Executive
Officer Mr.
Emergency Response Organizations and Management Groups for

Sun Yang and me, formulated the “Working Plan of
Epidemic Prevention”, and established 11 working teams covering

overall coordination, temperature measurement, sterilization,

quarantine, canteen, dormitory, procurement, human resources,
finance, monitoring and outreach publicity in order to make deliberate
arrangement and deployment for the Epidemic prevention and
strictly implement various prevention and control measures in various
departments of the Group. The Group has specially appointed
two famous medical doctors as its health consultants to provide
professional medical guidance on the Epidemic prevention to
effectively protect the health of staff and production safety. The Group
adopted the “Three Colors Classified Management Method and Grid
Management Method for the Staff (§ T= @&t HEE L2 BRBLE
I#)” to ensure the resumption of production in an orderly manner.

As at the date of issuance of these financial statements, the capacity
utilization rate of the Group has resumed normal. However, given the
inherent unpredictable nature and rapid spread relating to COVID-19
globally, the Group’s business might be affected and the Directors of
the Company will continue to closely monitor in this regard. Looking
ahead, the Group will further improve the emergency response plan
and conduct practical trainings to enhance the risk management and
improve the internal control systems.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all of its staff for
their long-term efforts and to the management for their outstanding
contribution. It is the unremitting efforts of each member that enable
the Group to make great achievements. Also, the Group wishes to
express its sincere gratitude towards its shareholders, customers and
business partners for their long-standing support and recognition. The
Group will continue to strive for the sustainable development of the
business, so as to realise higher values for its shareholders and other
stakeholders.

Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

China
16 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW

Looking back at 2019, the global economy remained sluggish, with
the economic growth reaching the lowest point since the financial
crisis in 2008. Meanwhile, the global shipment volume of smartphones
continued to decline for the third consecutive year in 2019. According
to the report issued by a market analyst firm, Canalys, the global
shipment volume of smartphones in 2019 was approximately 1,366.7
million units, representing a decrease of approximately 1.6% compared
to that of 2018.

As the smartphone market has already been in the stock era, major
smartphone brand manufacturers are looking for new functions to
seek differentiated competitive advantages and breakthroughs of sales
volume. The trend of industrial concentration is increasingly prevalent.
In this context, a leapfrog improvement in camera functions leads
to the rapid development of the camera technology in smartphone.
In 2019,
camera. Specifications such as ultra-high resolution,

it became a mainstream to equip smartphones with multi-
large aperture,
large image size, ultra-wide angle, ultra-miniaturisation, telephoto
and time of flight (“TOF”) were continuously upgraded in order to
enrich user experiences such as optical zoom, infinity screen and 3D
sensing. Relying on the market-driven technological innovation, the
Group actively invests in R&D of new products, and conducts in-depth
cooperation with mainstream smartphone brand manufacturers to
further develop and consolidate its leading technological advantages in
the optical-related industries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF WA

In 2019, despite the slight decline in sales volume of the global
automobile market, the governments of various countries have
gradually agreed with the view that intelligent driving technology can
improve traffic safety, and further increase the penetration rate of
intelligent driving by encouraging installation and imposing mandatory
requirements. In March 2019, the Japanese government revised
the “Road Transport Vehicle Act”, which requires the addition of
“automatic operating devices” to security standard target devices, that
is, devices such as cameras and radars that must be installed in the
vehicle when it is driven automatically through a software program.
The Japanese government expects that autonomous driving can be
achieved on the expressway and unmanned vehicles will be used to
deliver services in sparsely populated areas in 2020. According to
the “Safety Technical Conditions for Operating Passenger Vehicles”
issued by the Ministry of Transport of China, operating passenger
vehicles with a length over 9 meters are required to be equipped with
the lane departure warning system (‘LDWS”) and forward collision
warning system (‘FCWS”) to enhance active safety. Besides, operating
passenger vehicles that meet the requirements of the regulations have
been officially and compulsorily installed with autonomous emergency
braking system (“AEBS”) since 1 April 2019. In addition, the “Safety
Technical Conditions for the Operation of Motor Vehicles” also
clearly emphasizes that highway passenger vehicles and sightseeing
buses with a length of more than 11 meters should be compulsorily
installed with lane-keeping assistance system (‘LKAS”) and AEBS
prior to 1 February 2021. In addition, a number of global automobile
manufacturers also plan to start Level 3 of autonomous driving from
2020, including Honda, Nissan, Volkswagen and BMW, etc. In China,
Shanghai has issued an intelligent connected vehicles demonstration
application license, and Wuhan City has also issued the first batch
of seven “road transportation business licenses” for autonomous
driving vehicles to permit the manned trial operation. Driven by
policies, Internet cross-border competition and consumer demand,
the penetration rate of ADAS has increased rapidly. With its own
technological innovation and leading advantages, the Group will fully
benefit from the rapid growth of the vehicle camera industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the optical instruments market, the market demand of microscopes
business was week. However, due to the transformation and upgrade
of the domestic traditional manufacturing industry, the demands for
intelligent machines and equipment from automated factories were
increasing. The Group made proactive efforts to keep pace with the
trend of technological development and further integrated its internal
and external resources to develop key markets, with an aim to seize
new opportunities for business development.

In addition, the Group has also made certain improvements in other
emerging businesses. With the gradual landing and clarification of
3D vision-related market applications, TOF products and technical
solutions of the Group can be applied to robotic vision, facial
recognition payment, smart retail, smart logistics and other various
fields. Among them, the Group has focused on the field of robotic
vision in terms of its market strategic positioning. Taking the sweeping
robotic vision module as an entry point, the Group has completed
algorithm match verification for a renowned customer. This means
the Group’s vision solutions has officially applied in sweeping robot
industry. In addition, in the area of AR/VR, the Group has made the
layout of a series of optical component products, among which Fresnel
lens is lighter and thinner than traditional aspherical lens and closer to
the demand for smaller, thinner and lighter of end products. Its mature
functional design and high precision injection molding technology can
meet the demands of different customers. The Group will keep up with
the development of the times by expanding into optical related fields
and making technological preparation in advance in order to survive in
the development of these new fields in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF WA

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2019, the Group’s major businesses achieved good
results. The shipment volume of handset lens sets for the year increased
by approximately 41.3% compared to that of last year. As the industry’s
position continued to enhance, it firmly ranked the second globally in
terms of market share for the year. The product mix and customer base
have also been further optimised. The shipment volume of vehicle lens
sets for the year increased by approximately 25.4% compared to that
of last year. It has continued to maintain a better growth momentum
than the industry and ranked the first globally with increasing market
share. Under the multiple pressure of fierce competition in the industry
and global economic and trade instability, the handset camera modules
business surmounted the challenges and its shipment volume for the
year increased by approximately 27.7% compared to that of last year.
This business effectively checked and rectified the manufacturing
system and the management processes, and also adjusted the
organization structure. Meanwhile, with further getting through sales,
R&D, manufacturing, quality control and other aspects, the product yield
rate improved and operating costs further declined.

During the year, the Group focused on the future and actively made
patent layout to effectively avoid operating risk in terms of intellectual
property rights. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,521
granted patents, including 436 invention patents, 1,032 utility model
patents and 53 exterior design patents. In addition, another 2,490
patent applications are pending for approval.

OPTICAL COMPONENTS

Benefiting from the good development of the mid- and high-end
smartphone market and the vehicle imaging and sensing fields,
the Optical Components business segment overcame multiple key
technological factors and enhanced the manufacturing capabilities to
increase the value added to the products and services. The Group
promoted the technological exploration and business development of
the emerging optical field and seized the market opportunities quickly.
The Group also fortified the internal management and adhered the
cultural concept of the customer first and quick response. This business
segment recorded a rapid growth in terms of the revenue. During
the year, the revenue of the Optical Components business segment
amounted to approximately RMB8,815.4 million, representing an
increase of approximately 46.4% compared to that of last year. This
business segment accounted for approximately 23.3% of the Group’s
total revenue, compared to approximately 23.2% of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group has successfully completed the R&D of
numerous handset lens sets with high specifications, mainly including
ultra-large image size (1/1.5” and 1/1.3”) handset lens sets and the
10-time optical zoom handset lens sets. Meanwhile, the 64-mega pixel
large image size (1/1.7”) handset lens sets, ultra-miniaturised head
(head size is 1.865 mm) handset lens sets and 5-time optical zoom
handset lens sets have commenced mass production.

Furthermore, with the extensive experience and leading technological
advantages in the optical field, the Group actively developed emerging
optical markets and engaged in the development of lens sets and
optical components applied in VR/AR, 3D sensing, smart home,
drones and optical communication, etc. During the year, the sales of
the Group’s VR lens sets and lenses, the optical components of 3D
sensing and lens sets of smart home had further breakthrough and
seized the market opportunities in advance.

During the year, the vehicle lens sets of the Group achieved certain
breakthroughs in technological innovation. The Group has completed
the R&D of front, side and rear view vehicle lens sets which are all
8-mega pixel. These vehicle lens sets can be applied to Level 4 of
autonomous driving. And the Group obtained mass production orders.
In addition, the Group also made satisfying achievements in emerging
products. During the year, the Group has completed the development
of the core modules of the AR head-up display (‘AR HUD”) in vehicles
and delivered the samples to the clients. Meanwhile, the Group
continued to promote the R&D of LIDAR optical mechanical modules
and continuously deployed the optical sensing products for the
upgrading ADAS and autonomous driving system.

As at 31 December 2019, a total of 715 granted patents have been
obtained by the Group in the Optical Components business segment,
including 229 invention patents, 481 utility model patents and 5
exterior design patents. In addition, 1,262 patents are pending for
approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF WA

OPTOELECTRONIC PRODUCTS

Under the multiple pressure of the continuous decline in the global
shipment volume of smartphones, the intense competition in the
industry and the volatile Sino-US trade dispute, the Optoelectronic
Products business segment has made breakthroughs in the core
technologies, optimised the organization functions and personnel
allocation, strengthened supply chain management and improved the
manufacturing system. As a result, the yield rates of new products
further improved and this business segment has made decent
achievement. During the year, the revenue of the Optoelectronic
Products business segment amounted to approximately RMB28,748.4
million, representing an increase of approximately 46.6% compared to
that of last year. This business segment accounted for approximately
76.0% of the Group’s total revenue, compared to approximately 75.6%

of last year.

During the year, the specifications of smartphone cameras upgraded
continuously and the application scenarios became increasingly
abundant. Optical zoom is still an important technology for smartphone
cameras to benchmark digital cameras and the Group has completed
the R&D of 10-time optical zoom handset camera modules. Besides,
5-time optical zoom handset camera modules, ultra-large image size
(1/1.3”) handset camera modules and ultra-large aperture (FNo.1.4)
handset camera modules have achieved mass production. At the same
time, the advent of the 5G era further stimulated the development for
3D sensing and the demand for TOF technology from smartphone
brand manufacturers was particularly strong. The Group has mass
produced TOF-related products in large amounts. In terms of
packaging technology, the Group further developed and promoted the
second-generation semiconductor packaging solution. This solution
would enhance the strength and flatness of handset camera modules
to improve the reliability of high-end products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the production lines of the Group’s handset camera
modules were further optimised and the automation level was further
improved. In terms of production line process, the Group pioneered
the on-line assembly (“OLA”), which used automatic loading and
unloading and material transfer methods to achieve automatic
production from chip on board (“COB”) to active alignment (“AA”). The
Group’s self-developed automated array camera assembly (‘ACA”) has
also been put into use. This can reduce the variance in the assembly
process, improve the attachment precision and achieve online
production. In terms of inspection of finished products, the Group
has achieved auto optical inspection (“AOI”), which has significantly
improved the efficiency of inspection as compared to manual
inspection. In addition, the Group has also initiated the equipment
of wafer level testing (“WLT”), which has significantly enhanced the
testing efficiency.

In respect of the vehicle modules business, the Group systematically
laid out the product roadmaps in a market-oriented way, and launched
the design of key technologies and new forward-looking products with
the strong optoelectronic technology. The products were recognized in
the market and the business achieved breakthroughs. During the year,
the Group has completed the R&D of 8-mega pixel front-view vehicle
modules.

In addition, the Group will continue to take robotic vision as its
strategic business through the advantages of 3D depth sensing
technology and the integration of software and hardware so as to build
a large robotic vision platform. The Group will develop core capabilities
including high-precision TOF technology, color and depth (‘RGBD”)
camera calibration and mass production as well as the algorithm
of robotic recognition and positioning. The Group will focus on the
construction of two product lines for recognition and positioning, with
sweeping robots and facial recognition payment as market entry points
in order to speed up the implementation of strategic business.

As at 31 December 2019, a total of 659 granted patents have been
obtained by the Group in the Optoelectronic Products business
segment, including 186 invention patents, 451 utility model patents
and 22 exterior design patents. In addition, 1,156 patents are pending
for approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF WA

OPTICAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year, the market demand for optical instruments was weak.
The revenue of the Optical Instruments business segment amounted
to approximately RMB284.9 million, representing an decrease of
approximately 5.0% compared to that of last year. This business
segment accounted for approximately 0.7% of the Group’s total

revenue, compared to approximately 1.2% of last year.

In the microscopes business, the Group completed the R&D of laser
confocal scanning microscope. The field of view and imaging speed
of the microscope are in the domestic leading position. Flexible
switches can enable high-precision scanning and high-speed scanning
which provides better hardware support for scientific researchers.
At the same time, in the field of medical automated scanning, the
Group pioneered and mass produced the first domestic 60-time
apochromatic oil-immersion objective with a numerical aperture of
1.4. This objective can significantly enhance the coverage area with
guaranteed distinguishability so as to improve the scanning efficiency.

In the intelligent equipment business, the Group completed the R&D
and batch sales of the pathological section scanner and has obtained
certification from the China Food and Drug Administration. The
scanner applies the technologies such as triple-prism micro-optical
imaging, flight focus technology and ultra-depth of field to quickly
form clear and high-level color rendition digital images of pathological
sections, which in turn assist doctors in diagnosis and facilitate
remote pathology and digital pathology storage.
industrial field, the Group continued to increase the R&D investments

In addition, in the
in online optical inspection equipment and optimize the efficiency and
performance of the equipment.

As at 31 December 2019, a total of 147 granted patents have been
obtained by the Group in the Optical Instruments business segment,
including 21 invention patents, 100 utility model patents and 26
exterior design patents. In addition, 72 patents are pending for
approval.

20 Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2019

K2R

REA - RBEBROMIGHE TS - KBES
HEMRALN ARE284,900,0007T  BREF
TREHI5.0% © L EBBPULAEBBRKAL
0.7% * MEEFANEHI1.2% °

FEEMELETY  AEEER T WL RBERR
BEREOTI B o MERBRER AN B3R
EZHAERELKE  AENBRERER
HRERABEOIENS AR SRR
TEFOBASS - A ARFEBLHR
BET - AEERBRNEAKRELTAT.40
WEEEORABEYRARE - ZNBEEN
FRBESWROERT + AERF— RRIEE
B RERERE -

BeREXES $‘il%}ﬂ27f1§tﬂﬁﬁ?*
BT BRI EHE - YEEMSER
MEREBEEERNRE - %R HM {ﬁ%ﬁﬁ =

RBEMCBKE - RITHERMMBRRS
T?Zfﬁ' RBTZBEM H B ERNFIEL &
FEGR  WOBEEETOH - WEERRKEM
PRI FRIEMEEN o esh - ETREED
| - AREFEMATERARES SR
R BIERENBRERENERE

R-B-NE+-_A=1+—08 KAEEENE
BREFEPOEREENH14718 - BERH
HH2118 - EAFEFEF100H RINE R E
Fl26TH - fh4h - SHET2HEEFIEERFE



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue was
approximately RMB37,848.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 46.0% or approximately RMB11,916.9 million compared
to that of last year. The increase in revenue was mainly benefited from
the Group’s further development in smartphone related businesses
and rapid growth in the vehicle imaging and sensing fields.

Revenue generated from the Optical Components business segment
increased by approximately 46.4% or approximately RMB2,792.6
million to approximately RMB8,815.4 million compared to that of last
year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the sound
development of handset lens sets and vehicle lens sets businesses.

Revenue generated from the Optoelectronic Products business
segment increased by approximately 46.6% or approximately
RMB9,139.3 million to approximately RMB28,748.4 million compared
to that of last year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable
to the growth in the shipment volume and average selling price of
handset camera modules.

Revenue generated from the Optical Instruments business segment
decreased by approximately 5.0% or approximately RMB15.0 million
to approximately RMB284.9 million compared to that of last year.
The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the weak market
demand for optical instruments.

Gross Profit and Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB7,750.7 million, which was approximately 57.8% higher
compared to that of last year. The gross profit margin was approximately
20.5% (2018: approximately 18.9%), which was approximately 1.6
percentage points higher compared to that of last year. The increase in
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the increase in gross profit
margins of the Optical Components and Optoelectronic Products business
segments compared to those of last year.

The gross profit margins of Optical Components business segment,
Optoelectronic Products business segment and Optical Instruments
business segment were approximately 45.2%, 9.3% and 41.3%,
respectively (2018: approximately 41.5%, 8.4% and 40.5%
respectively).
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BEREF WA

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 increased by approximately RMB68.7 million
compared to that of last year to approximately RMB278.6 million.
It accounted for approximately 0.7% of the Group’s revenue during
the year, compared to approximately 0.8% of last year. The increase
in absolute amount was primarily attributable to the increase in the
costs of selling, marketing and distribution personnel resulted from the
increased sales activities.

R&D Expenditure

The R&D expenditure of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 increased by approximately RMB847.0 million compared to that
of last year to approximately RMB2,209.3 million. It accounted for
approximately 5.9% of the Group’s revenue during the year, compared
to approximately 5.3% of last year.

expenditure was attributable to the Group’s continuous investments in

The increase in overall R&D

the upgrade of existing products and the R&D of the products related
to the emerging businesses.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 increased by approximately RMB216.5 million
compared to that of last year to approximately RMB650.4 million.
It accounted for approximately 1.7% of the Group’s revenue during
the year, which was the same compared to that of last year. The
increase in absolute amount was mainly attributable to the increase
in the headcount and remuneration of administrative staff, the grant
of restricted shares and the corresponding increase in relevant fringe
benefits..

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 increased by approximately RMB192.4 million compared to that
of last year to approximately RMB531.0 million. The increase in income
tax expense was mainly attributable to the increase in profit before tax.
The Group’s effective tax rate was approximately 11.7% during the
year, compared to approximately 11.9% of last year.

22 Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SHER 7 #HMAX

B2_ZT-NF+-_A=+t—BHLEE &
SENHEERDHAXREFEMOARE
68,700,0007T ' EE#H AR 278,600,000
7L REREREBBALO.7% » EFMHLLH
0.8% ° BH LML E B R HN & HTEIL
MEBARRHE - MHERERRD HABMRAR
KB o

WrEEBA X

HE_ZT—hWF+ZA=T—HBLHFE "
AEBMMAERIBEFEMNHDARE
847,000,0007T * EZEAAKK2,209,300,000
TL o RFERE R EEIRALS.9% « EFELL

5.3% ° R ERTMIZMNEENTEEFE
BHESNEBEMR IR R EZEEIEH
EmmiEE -

TTERBAX

BE-F - NWF+T-A=+T—BLFE"

AEENTHERAXBREFEMOARRE
216,500,0007T * #E# AR 650,400,000
T REREAREBRALNLT7% - BEFIEL
R - BESBEOENTERRARITHRETH

ERHEN LA BREMEROOEL RIBEE
IR AE IS -
8B
BHE-_ZEZ—NWE+_A=+—HIFE -

REENAMSHRAIBREFEMODARE
192,400,0007T ' EZEH AR 531,000,000
7T o FTSMEIG e = 2 R E 2 R AR
B REAR - AEEMNBRMELN11.7% -
EFRL11.9% °



The tax rates applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are

shown as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

MELREM

Management Discussion and Analysis

Type of subsidiaries
i PGk Eidl

BEEERWED T

TRERAEESHENBRARNERRE

**Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Zhejiang Optics’)

HIRTHEERAT
([REHTHE )

“*Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Instruments”)

CERRTHRERAT
([FRFHERR])

“*Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Zhongshan Optics”)

*RTRE (R FRAF
([RFRLKE])

“*Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Opotech’)

CERRTAEREARAA

(IRFHXE])

“*Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Infrared Optics’)

BB FAMMER AR
([RFANKE])

“*Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech

Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Automotive Optech’)

“ERBTEUHBHITARAT
(BsERXB))

(Expected) (Expected)

(FEH)
Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau joint venture)
BEREERA
(BBREE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau joint venture)
BREFAF
BRRAE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau and domestic
joint venture)
BREMEAR
BRRERRNSE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau and domestic
joint venture)
BREMEAR
BRRERRNSE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(investment by foreign
investment company)
BREEAR
(INERECERE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
BREERAR
INERECEEABE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

BFREME (KE) R AT « 2019 &

(FEH)

156.0%

15.0%

15.0%

15.0%

15.0%

15.0%
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Name of subsidiaries

i) PR

+*Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Xinyang Optics’)

MEERTHRBERAT]
((RFEBXE])

“Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical
Intelligence (Yuyao)”’)

AR TR BRMER AR
([RFEREXE (B2 )

Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision
Optics Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Shanghai Optics’)

ERTBARENSERAR
(TBFLEx2)

Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Intelligent Technology’)
BRATERNEARAT
([HFEREREK])

Sunny Group Company Limited
(“Sunny Group”)

RTREBRAA
([RFEEE])

“Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence”)
IR FEEABRMERRA
((RFEEXE])

Type of subsidiaries
o] NGk <Eidl

(Expected)
(FaH)
Limited liability company
(investment by foreign
investment company)
BEREERA
(INERELERE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)

EREEAF
CEABE) 25.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
BREFELR
GIMEREREEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREERA
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
BEREERA
(INERECEREABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company

BRETAF
0% 12.5% 12.5%
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25.0%
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25.0%
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Type of subsidiaries
M AR

Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research
Institute Co., Ltd.

(“Sunny Research Institute”)

RFHE NI MR BRAR
([#FHER])

‘Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu
Sunxin Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

(“‘Ningbo Sunxin Investment’)

'ERGLRNERZEREER
BRLE (BRER)
([ERPRERE])

Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu
Sunyi Investment Co., Ltd.
(“‘Ningbo Sunyi Investment’)

BERBILRTERZDRIREEEARAT

([BERRBRE])

Yuyao City Sunny Huitong Microcredit
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Huitong’)

gkmzFER \EERERAAF
(IBFER])

*Ningbo Sunny OmniLight
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny OmniLight Technology”)
TR 5T RRE M AR A A
([FRFRRB])

*¢Sunny Mobility Technologies (Ningbo)

Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Mobility”)

R FEITERBMARAR
((RFETER])

(Expected)
(&)
Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREMERQA
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited partnership
company

BREBRR
N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA @R

Limited liability company

AREMEAT
25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREAERA
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREERA N/A
OEABE) TERA 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BEREERA N/A
CEABE) TEA 25.0% 25.0%

BFREME (KE) R AT « 2019 &

(Expected)
(FaH)

25.0%

N/A
TER

25.0%

25.0%

25.0%

25.0%
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Name of subsidiaries

i) PR

Type of subsidiaries
o] NGk <Eidl

*Ningbo Wissen Intelligent Sensing
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Wissen Intelligent Sensing”)
RN ARE R ERRMER A
((RHEEeER])

*Shanghai Wissen Automotive Sensing
Technology Co., Ltd.

Limited liability company
(legal person sole

investment)
BEREERA N/A
OEABE) TEA

Limited liability company
(legal person sole

(“Shanghai Wissen”) investment)
B RAREHERRMARA R BREEAA
(=23 CEANBE)

26

Companies were recognised as Hi-Tech Enterprises prior to the balance
sheet date.

The companies have obtained Hi-Tech Enterprise Certification with
the expiry dates on 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 or 31
December 2021.

The company was recognised as a Software Company prior to the
balance sheet date, and entitled preferential policies of exemption from
enterprise income tax for the first two years and reduction half for the
subsequent three years.

The partners of the company shall be responsible for the income tax
because it is a limited partnership company.

Companies were established or acquired during the year.
The company’s registered name has been changed from Wuxi Wissen

Intelligent Sensing Technology Co., Ltd. to Sunny Mobility Technologies
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd. during the year.
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Profit for the Year and Net Profit Margin

The profit for the year of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 increased by approximately RMB1,506.7 million compared to
that of last year to approximately RMB4,019.4 million. The increase
in profit for the year was mainly attributable to the increase in
gross profit. The net profit margin was approximately 10.6% (2018:
approximately 9.7%).

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019 increased by approximately
RMB1,500.4 million compared to that of last year to approximately
RMB3,991.3 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Flows

The table below summarises the Group’s cash flows for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

Net cash from operating activities &£ & 5 E TSR & 558
Net cash used in investing activities % & & E IR & F 58

Net cash (used in) from financing activities & /& E) (FTA)FT1SIR & /558

BEENWED

FREN KRR =

( E 2 - N F+ZA=+—BLHF
B AEBNFRENREFENLHA
R¥1,506,700,000T ' EEHARY
4,019,400,0007C - FRHFENFERR B
EFIE N o FHEAL10.6% (ZF—NF :
#99.7%) °

752 T BRSP4 6 PO R
BE_T-hWG+_A=+—BLFE"
ARFIBEREERN SR EFERB MY

AR#1,500,400,000T ' EEHARE
3,991,300,0007T ©

RENE & R M BRIR

RERg

TR AEEHE-_T—NF+_A=+—
AR-ZFE-NF+-_A=+t—HILFENRS

MEME

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB million RMB million
ARMBEETRT ARBEETT
4,661.6 3,567.9
(3,555.8) (5,499.3)
(1,441.4) 2,956.8
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The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash on hand and
net cash generated from operating activities. The Board expects
that the Group will rely on net cash from operating activities, bank
borrowings and debt financing to meet the demand of working
capital and other capital expenditure requirements in the short run.
In the long run, the Group will be mainly funded by net cash from
operating activities and, if necessary, by additional bank borrowings,
debt financing or equity financing. There were no material changes in
the funding and financial policy of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Group’s balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately
RMB1,917.2 million as at 31 December 2019,
decrease of approximately RMB337.1 million compared to the balance

representing an
at the end of last year.
Operating Activities

Cash inflow from operating activities was mainly generated from
cash receipt from sales of the Group’s products. Cash outflow from
operating activities was mainly due to the purchases of raw materials,
staff costs, selling and distribution expenses, R&D expenditure and
administrative expenses. Net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately RMB4,661.6 million for the financial year of 2019
and net cash generated from operating activities was approximately
RMB3,567.9 million for the financial year of 2018. The increase in the
net cash generated from operating activities was mainly attributable
to the increase in profit before tax and the increase in trade and other
payables, which was partly offset by the increase in inventories and
increase in trade and other receivables and prepayment compared to
those of last year.

The trade receivable turnover days (average of the opening and
closing trade receivable balances/revenue x 365 days) decreased from
approximately 67 days for the financial year of 2018 to approximately
65 days for the financial year of 2019. There was no significant
difference in the number of trade receivable turnover days in these two
financial years.

The trade payable turnover days (average of the opening and closing
trade payable balances/cost of sales x 365 days) decreased from
approximately 83 days for the financial year of 2018 to approximately
82 days for the financial year of 2019. There was no significant
difference in the number of trade payable turnover days in these two
financial years.
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The inventory turnover days (average of the opening and closing
inventory balances/cost of sales x 365 days) increased from
approximately 49 days for the financial year of 2018 to approximately
50 days for the financial year of 2019. There was no significant
difference in the number of inventory turnover days in these two
financial years.

Investing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash used in investing activities of
approximately RMB3,555.8 million for the financial year of 2019, which
was mainly attributable to purchases and release of unlisted financial
products of approximately RMB51,248.9 million and approximately
RMB50,391.8 million during the year respectively, and the Group’s
capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB3,167.9 million
during the year.

Financing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash used in financing activities of
approximately RMB1,441.4 million for the financial year of 2019. The
cash inflow mainly came from proceeds from new bank borrowings
raised of approximately RMB3,071.5 million. Major outflows were the
repayment of bank borrowings of approximately RMB3,453.3 million
and dividends paid to shareholders of approximately RMB623.0 million
declared last year.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2019,
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB3,167.9 million, which

the Group’s capital

was mainly used for the purchases of property, plant and equipment,
payments for leasehold lands, payment for intangible assets and
purchase of other tangible assets. All of the capital expenditure was
financed by internal resources and bank borrowings.

BERE WD T

FEAERH (MNMBARTFEFI9RE #H
EXAX365H) BT~ \FHMBFENL49
i*ﬂﬂﬁ_f hiﬁﬁﬁﬁliféﬁ’li’%OH ° EM

BREEH
AEBR-T-NFHBRFENREEDHR

& FHEHARMS,555,800,0007T ' EF
ERHARNEFADRBERBERIELT SR
Em#HARES1,248,900,0007T K& 49 A R#E
50,391,800,000 T FI A& B F A K & A5 2
# AR #3,167,900,0007T °

BMEEE

REEBR - NFHRFENREETH
BAIR&FHEHAREA,441,400,0007T © 7
ABRBEXTERBHESHRITEEHARK
3,071,500,0007T * m=x E LRI R ERRTT
EEHAREES,453,300,000 7T K 1A A% B f+F
KEMTIRMARE LA RKEE623,000,0007T °

BEXRFEX

BEZT-NF+ZA=+—HLFE  £*&
@E’Jédisﬂfzm}\&%s 167,900,0007T * *
K%fﬁﬁﬁa%% Bes iR HELMH
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Indebtedness
Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB1,118.6 million (2018: approximately RMB1,482.4
million). No bank borrowings were secured by certain buildings and
land of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Bank facilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank facilities of RMB2,615.0
million with Yuyao Branch of Agricultural Bank of China Limited,
RMB893.0 million with Yuyao Branch of Bank of China Limited,
RMB1,300.0 million with Ningbo Branch of The Export-Import Bank
of China, RMB600.0 million with Yuyao Branch of Ningbo Bank Co.,
Ltd., RMB200.0 million with Yuyao Branch of Bank of Communication
Co., Ltd., RMB80.0 million with Ningbo Branch of Huaxia Bank Co.,
Ltd., RMB70.0 million with Xinyang Pingzhong Street Sub-branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, USD90.0 million with
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch, USD30.0 million with BNP Paribas
Shanghai Branch, USD60.0 million with The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited Hong Kong Branch and USD30.0 million
with Ningbo Branch of HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd..

Debt securities

As at 31 December 2019, debt securities of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB4,156.1 million (2018: approximately RMB4,080.0
million). For details, please refer to Note 34 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s gearing ratio of approximately 17.2% refers to the ratio
of total borrowings to total capital (total capital is the sum of total
liabilities and shareholders’ equity), reflecting the Group’s stable
financial position.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees.

Financing and fiscal policies and objectives

The Group adopts prudent financing and fiscal policies. The Group
will seek bank borrowings and debt financing when its operating
demand grows, and will regularly review its bank borrowings and debt
securities to achieve a sound financial position.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any pledge or charge on assets as at
31 December 2019, except for the pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB6.1 million. For details of the pledged bank
deposits, please refer to Note 27 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the capital expenditure of the Group in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial statements amounted
to approximately RMB953.2 million (2018: approximately RMB880.9
million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no other capital
commitments save as disclosed above.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not enter into any material
off-balance sheet transactions.
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PERFORMANCE OF INVESTMENTS AND
FUTURE INVESTMENTS PLAN

The Group’s investing activities primarily include the purchases
and release of unlisted financial products, placement and release
of pledged bank deposits, placement and withdrawal of short term
fixed deposits and purchases of property, plant and equipment. In
particular, purchase and disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss include debt investments, equity investments,
fund investments and unlisted financial products. Among them, the
fund investments are managed by relevant financial institutions, mainly
investing in debt securities linked to the performance of related senior
debts while unlisted financial products are managed by relevant banks
in China, mainly investing in certain financial assets such as bonds,
trusts and cash funds, and their investment incomes are determined
based on the performance of relevant government debt instruments
and treasury bills.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained a portfolio of unlisted
financial products with the total carrying amount of approximately
RMB5,289.2 million (31 December 2018: approximately RMB4,432.1
million). As at 31 December 2019, the size of the unlisted financial
products subscribed by the Group in aggregate represented
approximately 17.2% of the Group’s total assets (31 December 2018:
approximately 19.4%). The investment costs for the unlisted financial
products subscribed as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB5,289.2 million (31 December 2018: approximately RMB4,432.1
million). During the year of 2019, the amount of investment income
from the unlisted financial products was approximately RMB189.8
million (2018: approximately RMB181.3 million).
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the major unlisted TERFIAEENR -_ZT—HE+-_A=+—8
financial products subscribed by the Group as at 31 December 2019: REMETEIE NS REMBA

Percentage of

fair value of the

Fair value of the unlisted financial

unlisted financial | products relative to

products as at the total assets of

31 December 2019 the Group as at

R=Z—H7%E | 31 December 2019

+t=A=t-H R=B-n%

Investment costs FLmERER TEHETr=E

RERAK WA fE FLmERERN

Name of the unlisted financial products | Name of banks RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 NEREEE

FETERERER RITAM ARBT ARBTR AEENLLA
“An Xin Kuai Xian Bubugao” Open-ended Agricultural Bank of China Limited

RMB wealth management
product for legal entity (Note 1)

[ZORET TR EAEBRRA PERERTROBRAF 1,364,000 1,364,000 4.4%
ARBBEER (M)
“Jin Yao Shi e An Xin Kuai Xian” Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Tian Tian Li Gun Li Second
Phase Open-ended RMB
wealth management product (Note 2)

[RBRE © RORER | RRMER PERERITROARAF 1,080,010 1,080,010 3.5%
FoMFAMAARERIER (FiF2)
“Tian Li Kuai Xian” net-asset-value type Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.
wealth management product
ARk R ERETER BRBOROERAT 900,000 900,000 2.9%
Close-ended private net-asset-value type Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
2019 No.140
20193 AV ALE AR 1405 BERBTRNERAT 420,000 420,000 1.4%
Others (Note 3)
Eft (B5E3) 1,525,160 1,525,160 5.0%
Total
act 5,289,170 5,289,170 17.2%

BFREME (KE) R AT « 2019 & 33



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF WA

Notes:

34

During the year of 2019, the subscriptions of the unlisted financial
product “An Xin Kuai Xian Bubugao” Open-ended RMB wealth
management product for legal entity (‘“Z/UR&RZEHE" A A BB
A AREIEH E ) by Sunny Opotech with Agricultural Bank of China
Limited reached RMB1,330.0 million between 27 December 2019
and 30 December 2019 and its peak at RMB1,364.0 million on 31
December 2019, rendering the assets ratio (as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) reached 5.35%, thereby exceeded 5% but was/
were less than 25% (based on the total assets of the Group as at 30
June 2019). Such subscriptions therefore constituted discloseable
transactions of the Company under Rule 14.06 of the Listing Rules.
Such unlisted financial product is non-principal guaranteed with floating
return, with a low-to-medium product risk rating and an annualised rate
of return between 2.10% and 3.45%, which depends on the number
of deposit days. The major underlying investments of such unlisted
financial product include state treasury bonds, central bank bills,
financial bonds, repurchases and credit bonds with high credit rating
listed on the interbank bond market, debt financing instruments under
private placement, cash and deposits, inter-bank deposits, investment
trust plan, proceeds rights, entrusted assets and other investments
that meet regulatory requirements. The amount of investment income
from such unlisted financial product during the year of 2019 was
approximately RMB4.6 million. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 2 March 2020.

During the year of 2019, the subscriptions of the unlisted financial
product “Jin Yao Shi ¢ An Xin Kuai Xian” Tian Tian Li Gun Li Second
Phase Open-ended RMB wealth management product (‘& & zte % /3R
R KRR EF)ZE 2 AR A R IR 81 2 fR) by the Company through its
subsidiaries with Agricultural Bank of China Limited reached its peak at
approximately RMB2,978.1 million and did not exceed the subscription
cap of RMB3,000.0 million, which was determined and approved by
the resolutions of the Board on 19 March 2019. Such unlisted financial
product is non-principal guaranteed with floating return, with a low-
to-medium product risk rating and an annualised rate of return of
3.00% after payment of fees. The major underlying investments of such
unlisted financial product include state treasury bonds, financial bonds,
central bank bills, credit bonds with high credit rating, repurchases,
cash and deposits, inter-bank deposits, entrusted assets and other
investments that meet regulatory requirements. The amount of
investment income from such unlisted financial product during the year
of 2019 was approximately RMB47.8 million. For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19 March 2019.

Other unlisted financial products included 12 other unlisted financial
products with four different banks to lower the concentration risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the fair value change
of the unlisted financial products was insignificant during the year of
2019.

The Board considers that the terms of such unlisted financial products
are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Such investment activities were funded primarily by the idle self-owned
funds of the Group. Going forward, the Group will continue to diversify
its investments among different banks to lower the concentration
risk and will closely monitor the performance of investments made
and future investments plan in accordance with its prudent policy
to utilise and to increase the yield of the idle funds of the Group
while maintaining a high level of liquidity and a low level of risk. Such
investment activities were made and will be made on the premises that
it would not adversely affect the working capital of the Group or the
operation of the Group’s principal business.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s investments
amounted to approximately RMB3,167.9 million, mainly involving
in the purchases of property, plant and equipment, the initial
production settings for new products, payments for leasehold lands
and the necessary equipment configurations for new projects. These
investments enhanced the Group’s R&D and technological application
capability and production efficiency, and thus expanded the sources of
revenue.

The Group adopts prudent financial policies, having its investment
projects mostly capital-protected with fixed income, so as to strive
for a stable and healthy financial position while improving returns. The
Group will consider to use financial instruments for hedging purposes
if necessary and will continue to fund its future investment from its
own financial resources.

Looking forward, the Group intends to further invest to enhance its
competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERNWED

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks arising from its bank
borrowings for working capital and capital expenditures that are
associated with the expansion of the Group and for other uses. The
rising of interest rates increases the costs of both existing and new
debts. As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate on fixed-
rate bank borrowings was approximately 2.77% per annum, while
the effective interest rate of variable-rate bank borrowings was
approximately 3.26% to 3.29% per annum.

Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Group exports a portion of its products to and purchases a
considerable amount of products from international markets where
transactions are denominated in USD or other foreign currencies.
Please refer to the information of the Group’s foreign currency
forward contracts and foreign currency options contracts at Note 28
of the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Except certain
investments which are in line with the Group’s business and which are
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group did not and has no plan
to make any foreign currency investment.

Credit Risk

The Group’s financial assets include derivative financial assets, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, short term fixed deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related party, equity instruments that
are included in other comprehensive income at fair value and debt
instruments measured at amortised cost, which represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade receivables,
the management has delegated a team which is responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group also has purchased insurance relating
to trade receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The amounts presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts, estimated by the management based
on prior experience, their assessment of the current economic
environment and the discounted cash flows to be received in future.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk since its
trade receivables are dispersed to a large number of counterparties
and customers. The credit risk on liquidity is limited because a majority
of the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings as rated by
international credit-rating agencies.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable
rates applicable to short term bank deposits. Therefore, any future
variations in interest rates will not have any significant impact on the
results of the Group.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level of
cash and cash equivalents through continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF WA

FINAL DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the dividends proposed by
the Board was approximately RMB0.728 (equivalent to HK$0.810)
per share, with payout ratio of approximately 20.0% of the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company. The final
dividends payable on 24 June 2020 is subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 22 May 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors consider sustainable returns to shareholders to be one
of the main objectives. The basic policy is to pay final dividends in
each financial year. Retained profits are effectively used by the Board
to fund the future development of the Group.

The Directors currently intend to recommend a distribution to all the
shareholders in an amount representing approximately 20% to 30% of
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company in respect
of each financial year by way of dividends. The recommendation for
dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board takes
into account the following factors when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

e the Company’s cash position and available distributable reserves;
e the Group’s general business condition;

e the Group’s financial results;

e the Group’s capital requirements;

e the interests of the shareholders of the Company;

e applicable laws and regulations and articles; and

e any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Any dividend declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to
Shares on a per share basis and the Company will pay such dividend
in Hong Kong dollars. No dividend shall be declared in excess of the

amount recommended by the Board. Any final dividend for a fiscal
year will be subject to approval by the shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the eligibility of shareholders to attend the AGM,
which is to be held on 22 May 2020, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 19 May 2020 to 22 May 2020, both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered. All
transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2020.

In order to determine the eligibility of shareholders to the dividends,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 29 May
2020 to 3 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares will be registered. All transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 28 May 2020.

Hopewell Centre,
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

PRODUCTION

The Group’s production bases locate in Yuyao of Zhejiang Province,
Zhongshan of Guangdong Province, Shanghai and Xinyang of Henan
Province in the PRC, respectively.

Meanwhile, the Group continues to carry out the construction of the
Chengxi production base in Yuyao which provides the facilities and
logistics support for the long-term development of the Group. The
construction of the phase | of the Chengxi production base in Yuyao
has begun since 2016 and almost finished at the end of 2019. It also
has been put into production. The construction of the phase Il has
begun since 2018, the first section of which has been accepted and
put into production during the year and the construction of the second
section will be completed in 2020.

In order to meet the clients’ rapidly growing demand in overseas
markets, the Group has established new production bases in India and
Vietnam respectively in 2019 and the factories in India has begun its
production during the year.

In 2019, the Group also set up a subsidiary in Germany, which is
responsible for the technical support, marketing and maintaining the

relationship with clients in Europe.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group had a total of 20,180 dedicated full-time employees
as at 31 December 2019,
administrative staff members, 8,405 production workers and 758
In line with the performance

including 11,017 management and

operation supporting staff members.
of the Group and individual employees, a competitive remuneration
including salaries, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, other fringe benefits as well as

package is offered to retain talents,

mandatory provident fund scheme for employees in Hong Kong and
state-managed retirement benefit scheme for employees in the PRC.
During the year of 2019, the Group has offered salaries, performance
bonuses and various benefits (such as medical insurance, endowment
insurance, unemployment insurance, etc.) to all of the full-time
employees.

The Group has also adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme
(“‘Restricted Share Award Scheme”), for the purposes of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants to recognise their
contribution to the Group and to enhance their ownership spirits.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, an aggregate of 2,390,089
shares were granted to eligible participants in accordance with the
terms of the Restricted Share Award Scheme by the Group.

On 16 March 2020, the Board resolved to extend the Restricted Share
Award Scheme period for ten years. As a result, the Restricted Share
Awards Scheme, which shall originally terminate on 21 March 2020,
shall now, unless terminated earlier by a resolution of the Board,
terminate on 21 March 2030.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREF WA

AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

During the year, the Group received numerous honors from customers,
industrial associates and institutions, local governments and the capital
market. These awards and recognitions were shown as follows:

Sunny Automotive Optech was awarded the “Supplier of the Year 2018
Best Performance within Category Optical Devices” by Continental
Automotive Group

Sunny Zhongshan Optics was awarded the “2018 Excellent Supplier”
by Zhejiang Dahua Co., Ltd.

Sunny Xingyang Optics was awarded the “2018 Excellent Supplier” by
Panasonic Avc Networks Xiamen Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “Excellent Supplier Award”
and “Strategic Supplier Award” by Huagin Communication Technology

Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “2018 Core Supplier’ by
Shenzhen O-film Tech Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “Best Delivery Support
Award” by ZTE Corporation

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “Excellent Supplier Award”
and “Partner Award” by Lenovo

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “Strategic Supplier Award” by
Wingtech Technology Co.,Ltd.

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “2018 Special Quality Award” by
Huawei Consumer Business Group

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “Supplier Appreciation Award” by LG
Electronics

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “Best Quality Award” by Wingtech
Technology Co.,Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “Best Strategic Cooperation Award”
by Xiaomi Corporation

Sunny Optical Intelligence was awarded the “Technology Innovation
Award” at the 20" China International Optoelectronic Exposition

Sunny Optical Intelligence was awarded the “Innovation Awards” at the
2020 International Consumer Electronics Show

The Group was listed in the “Top 100 Enterprises in China Electronic
Information Industry” for the sixth consecutive year, ranking 34"

The Group ranked the 329" in “2019 China Top 500 list” for five
consecutive years and ranked 26" in “Top 40 Companies in return on
equity” in the “Fortune” (Chinese edition)

The Group was listed in the “Top 500 Chinese Manufacturing
Enterprises” issued by China Enterprise Confederation and China
Enterprise Directors Association for the fifth consecutive year, ranking

285"

The Company was awarded the “Best IR Company (Large Cap)” b
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association in 2019

The Company was awarded the “The Most Remarkable Investor
Relations Recognition (Hang Seng Index Category)” at “Quam IR

Awards 2018

The Company was ranked 1%t in the “Best Investor Relations Program”
for the fourth consecutive year, ranked 1% in the “Best CEO”, “Best
CFQO”, “Best IR Professional”, “Best Corporate Governance” and “Best
ESG SRI Metrics” and awarded the title of “Most Respected Company”
among all-Asia technology/hardware companies by the US magazine,
Institutional Investor.

The Company was awarded the “2019 Golden Hong Kong Stocks
Award” and “Best TMT Company” at the 4" “Golden Hong Kong
Stocks Awards”
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERNWED

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE STRATEGIES

Looking into 2020, there are many uncertainties in the global economic

situation and the COVID-19 spreads around the world rapidly. In

the view of the Directors, 2020 is still a year with both challenges

and opportunities. The Group’s management will closely monitor

the development in the industries, capture the opportunities from

the technological innovation, continue to make good use of the
advantages of scale, technology, resources and talents by virtue of its
business transformation and upgrade as well as thoroughly implement

its development strategies, so as to obtain sustainable and steady

development by the Group.

1.

44

Thoroughly refine the existing advantageous
businesses and enhance the overall competitive
advantages

In 2020, the Group will continue to:

Improve the R&D capabilities, make breakthroughs in key
technologies, optimize the construction of the R&D system
and enlarge the technological value added to the products;

Strengthen the manufacturing capabilities, continuously
optimise the manufacturing management procedures and
organization structure, persistently innovate the technological
skills, accelerate to propel the processes of automatic
production and inspection, improve the production efficiency
and product quality and elevate the value added to the
production; and

Enhance the capability of cost control, persistently optimize
suppliers and supply channels, standardize the management
procedures, improve the management systems, increase
the management efficiency and accuracy and reduce the
operating cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2. Closely concentrate on the “Two Transformations”,

increase investments in new businesses and
cultivate new growth points for businesses

In 2020, the Group will still closely focus on the transformation
from an optical product manufacturer to a smart optical system
solution provider and the transformation from an instrument
product manufacturer to a system solution integrator. Also, the
Group will continue to look into the market trend, explore a deep
insight on the clients’ demands, increase the R&D investments
and promote the upgrade of existing products to quickly meet
the market demand. The Group will also form the advantages in
the segment markets to enhance the market competitiveness.
Besides, the Group will continue to make an exploration into
the new technologies and fields, follow the new trend and open
up the new markets as well as other fields such as the robotic
vision system, AR optical display, spatial positioning and multi-
sensor fusion. At the same time, Sunny Research Institute will also
continue to pursue close communication and cooperation with
external enterprises and institutes and complement each other’s
advantages to enable the R&D achievements quickly transforming
to the reliable products in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERNWED

46

Strengthen the construction of the talent teams
and the enterprise culture to improve the talents’
quality

The Group will continue to make in-depth analysis on the
employment demand and refine recruitment program to build a
more stable and quality supply channel of talents. Meanwhile, the
Group will further optimise the talent cultivation system, perfect
the employment qualification and training system, and set up a
more sound and reasonable developing path for talents. Moreover,
the Group will implement the “Rules of Cadre Management” (&
EE IR L)), improve the cultivation system for cadre and build
a cadre team with excellent management ability with strong
enterprise value. The Group will promote the in-depth learning
(EEREERR))

to deepen the understanding and knowledge on the enterprise

and discussion of the “Practice and Exploration”

culture. The Group will enhance the construction of talent teams
and enterprise culture to support the sustainable and rapid
development.

In the coming years, the Group will continue to benefit from the
broad development prospects of the optoelectronic industry. By
actively utilizing the Group’s leader advantages in the industry
as an optical expert, following the market demand, focusing on
R&D and innovation, pursuing product quality and adhering to
enhancing its comprehensive competitive strengths, the Group will
continue to provide the global top-tier Hi-Tech companies with
more superior products and services, thereby promoting corporate
growth and value enhancement to create more returns for the
shareholders continuously.
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Directors and Senior Management

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year of 2019, the Board consisted of 7 Directors comprising
3 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent
non-executive Directors. The information on the Directors is set forth
below.

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning (¥3##%8), aged 54, is one of the founders of the
Group, and currently is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee
of the Company. He is responsible for formulating the Group’s
policies and making decisions. Mr. Ye joined Yuyao County Chengbei
Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 and became its deputy general
manager since 1995. Mr. Ye has obtained a qualification of senior
economist issued by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008. Senior
economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally
granted to a person who has passed necessary examinations and
has acquired substantial management experience. Mr. Ye obtained
a diploma from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in 1999. Mr. Ye has
been an executive Director since May 2007 and is currently a director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ye was awarded the title
of “Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (i B ™) and the title of “Zhejiang
Province Outstanding Builder of Socialism with Chinese characteristics
(Non-public Economic Person) (I &EAEHLBEATHTRHFRES
PEEETeTIHEEERE) in the “40" Anniversary of Reform and
Opening, Entrepreneurs of Time (BXEFMA0E FeR X EM)” by the
Ningbo City Government in November 2018. Mr. Ye was awarded
“National May-First Labor Medal”’(Z2 B —%8)48%) and acquired the
title of “Zhejiang Province Model Worker” (HT/I& &8 &5) in April
2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREERE

Mr. Sun Yang (f##), aged 47, currently is an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Group. Mr. Sun graduated
from Ningbo University in 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
He then obtained a master’s degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in 2005. He joined the Group as
a chief officer of investment management centre in 2002. Mr. Sun has
obtained a qualification of senior economist issued by the Personnel
Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008 and awarded a qualification of chief
senior economist issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and
Social Security Department in December 2018. Currently, chief senior
economist is the highest economics professional and technical title in
the PRC, which is only granted to very few people who have passed
strict examinations and acquired substantial management experience
with major achievements. Mr. Sun has been an executive Director
since May 2009 and is currently a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group.

Mr. Wang Wenjie (£X7R), aged 52, currently is an executive Director
and executive vice president of the Company. He is responsible for the
strategic planning and information management of the Group, as well
as the management of Sunny Research Institute. Mr. Wang graduated
from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in
1989 and joined the Group after his graduation. Mr. Wang obtained a
qualification of senior economist in 2008 from the Personnel Bureau
of Zhejiang. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the
PRC and is generally granted to a person who has passed necessary
examinations and has acquired substantial management experience.
In 2012, he was awarded the titles of “Outstanding Entrepreneur of
Ningbo City”, “2012 Top 10 Yong Shang of Ningbo City” and “2012
National Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of Electronic Engineering
Industry”. He has been an executive Director since December 2013.
He was elected as the vice chairman of the Chinese Optical Society in
2017, responsible for advancing the development of optical industry in
China.
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Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Wenjian (£ 2£), aged 72, former Chairman of the Board,
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, is one of the founders
of the Group, and currently is a non-executive Director and the
Honorary Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wang joined the Yuyao County
Chengbei Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 as factory manager and
became its general manager since 1994 when it was transformed to
a joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Wang obtained the title of
“Outstanding Entrepreneur” from Ningbo Entrepreneurs Association
and Ningbo Enterprise Unite League in 2006 and was granted the
“Ningbo Excellent Entrepreneur Award” (EE Sl DK ) by the
Personnel Office under Ningbo Municipal Party Committee in 2015.
Mr. Wang was awarded the title of “Excellent Entrepreneurs (&
)" in the “40" Anniversary of Reform and Opening, Entrepreneurs of
Time (EREFNA0FEF B ERE)” by the Ningbo City Government in
November 2018. Mr. Wang acted as the Honorary President of Yuyao
Charity Federation in 2003 and was appointed as a guest professor
of the College of Information Science and Engineering, Zhejiang
University in 2005. He obtained a qualification of senior economist
in 1996 from Ningbo Municipal Government. Senior economist is
a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally granted to a
person who has passed necessary examinations and has acquired
substantial management experience. Mr. Wang was redesignated as a
non-executive Director in March 2012.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging (IR E), aged 72, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of Audit Committee. Mr. Zhang has worked
Ltd. (FHiEE
A]) as finance-in-charge since May 2017.

in MBCloud (Shenzhen) Information Technology Co.,
8l ORI ERRMBERA
Mr. Zhang worked in Shanghai Port Bureau as heads of the financial
division as well as the auditing division. He was also appointed as
a director of Shanghai Worldbest Industry Development Co., Ltd.
from 2001 to 2003 and acted as its chief financial officer. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shanghai Maritime University in 1982 with a bachelor’s
degree in economics and is a senior accountant and a non-practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
has been an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since May 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREERE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (52 %), aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of Nomination Committee. Mr. Feng has
been teaching in the Zhejiang University since August 1986 and been
promoted to his current positions of professor and doctoral supervisor
in July 1998, mainly responsible for works involving teaching and
scientific research. Mr. Feng was the director for the Institute of
Optical Engineering, the director for the Institute of Optical Imaging
Engineering and the head of Department of Optoelectronic Information
Engineering of Zhejiang University. Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor’s
degree in July 1983 from Zhejiang University in optical instrument
engineering, and also obtained a master’s degree in July 1986 in
optical instrument engineering from the same university. Mr. Feng has
currently been an independent non-executive director of Hangzhou
Everfine Photo-E-Info Co., Ltd. (stock code: 300306) since May 2016,
and an independent non-executive director of Telephone World Group
Co., Ltd. (code of National Equities Exchange and Quotations: 831354)
since October 2017. He has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since April 2016.

Mr. Shao Yang Dong (RB{PE), aged 50, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Shao currently is the general partner of Yuantai Investment Partners
Evergreen Fund, L.P. Mr. Shao was a director of each of Sunny
Zhejiang Optics and Sunny Instruments from May 2005 to September
2010, Sunny Zhongshan from October 2005 to September 2010,
Sunny Opotech from November 2005 to September 2010 and Sunny
Infrared Optics from March 2006 to September 2010. Mr. Shao was
a general partner of Chengwei Ventures Evergreen Fund, L.P. and
previously worked as a financial analyst at the investment banking
division of Salomon Brothers Inc. Mr. Shao obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics in May 1993 from Columbia University. Mr. Shao
also attended the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University
and earned a master’s degree in business administration in June 2000.
He has been an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since April 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Kewu (&%), aged 51, is the Vice President of the
Company. He is responsible for human resource management of
the Group. Mr. Dong graduated from Xidian University in 1990 with
a bachelor’'s degree in computer and application and from Fudan
University in 2004 with a master’s degree in business administration.
Before joining the Company in February 2012, Mr. Dong worked as
a partner and consulting director in a renowned consulting firm. Mr.
Dong also obtained qualifications of economist and engineer issued by
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC and the Planning Committee of
Shandong Province.

Mr. Ma Jianfeng (F5#1&), aged 47, is the Vice President and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ma graduated from Xiamen
University in July 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in economics. Mr.
Ma is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a qualified senior accountant in the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group in December 2010, Mr. Ma served as a chief
financial officer for Ningbo Bird Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhang Guoxian (5K &), aged 54, is the assistant of the President
of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Yuyao Huancheng
School in 1983 and joined the Group since his graduation. Mr. Zhang
attended the seminar of EMBA in Zhejiang University from July 2004
to July 2005 and obtained the relevant completion certificate. Prior
to being appointed as the assistant of the President, Mr. Zhang held
positions including deputy general manager, executive deputy general
manager and general manager of Sunny Zhejiang Optics.

Ms. Wong Pui Ling (& 1l1%), aged 38, is the Joint Company Secretary,
investor relations director, authorised representative and agent of the
Company. Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for company secretarial
matters and investor relations’ matters. Ms. Wong joined the Group
in July 2007. Ms. Wong has more than 10 years of experience in
financial reporting, accounting, auditing and investor relations. Ms.
Wong is a qualified accountant and is a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a postgraduate diploma in finance and law from the University of Hong
Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREERE

Mr. Wu Jun (R1&), aged 54, is a general manager of Sunny Zhejiang
Optics, Sunny Shanghai Optics and Sunny OmnilLight Technology.
He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny Zhejiang
Optics, Sunny Shanghai Optics and Sunny OmnilLight Technology.
Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in optical instruments
from Shanghai Institute of Mechanism in 1986. He later obtained a
qualification as a senior engineer in 1999 from the Personnel Bureau
of Zhejiang. Prior to joining the Group in March 1997, Mr. Wu worked
in Jiangxi Optics Instrument General Factory for 10 years as research
officer and chief of quality control.

Mr. Zhang Zhiping (38&F), aged 51, is a general manager of Sunny
Zhongshan Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Zhongshan Optics. Mr. Zhang graduated from Hunan Radio
and Television University in 1992. Prior to joining the Group in April
2006, Mr. Zhang acted as the deputy factory manager in Sintai Optical
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Chen Huiguang (FR=%), aged 56, is a general manager of
Sunny Infrared Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration
of Sunny Infrared Optics. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
optical instruments from Zhejiang University in 1983. He also obtained
a master's degree in engineering from Zhejiang University in 1992.
Prior to joining the Group in January 1999, Mr. Chen worked in
Xintian Precision and Optical Instrument Company Limited. He has
been a member of the optical coatings committee of the Chinese
Optical Society since 1992 and has been a member of the optical
material committee of the Chinese Optical Society since 2009. In
2015, he was granted the title of “Elite offing City — Award for Expert
with Outstanding Contribution to Ningbo City” by Ningbo Municipal
Party Committee, and was appointed as an executive director of
Chinese Society for Optical Engineering. Mr. Chen was awarded the
qualification for senior engineer of professor level in 2016. At the same
time, Mr. Chen was entitled to the special government allowance of
the State Council in 2016. Mr. Chen was awarded the title of 2013-
2017 Yuyao Top 10 Technological Researchers in December 2017.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guo Jingchao (385%), aged 57, is a general manager of Sunny
Xinyang Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Xinyang Optics. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor’'s degree from
Changchun University of Science and Technology in 1986, and a
master’s degree in engineering management from Nanjing University of
Science and Technology in 2002. Prior to joining the Group in February
2001, Mr. Guo worked in Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd.. He served
as a deputy general manager in both Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd.
and Lida Optical and Electronic Co., Ltd.. In 1997, Mr. Guo obtained a
qualification of senior engineer issued by China North Industries Group
Corporation.

Mr. Qiu Wenwei (E3%), aged 43, is a general manager of Sunny
Automotive Optech. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Automotive Optech. Mr. Qiu joined the Group in November
1997. He engaged in activities relating to R&D from 1997 to 2007 and
served as the head of R&D department in 2006. Mr. Qiu served as the
head of vehicle lens sets business in 2008, responsible for preparing
for setting up vehicle lens sets business and as the general manager
of Sunny Automotive Optech in 2012. Mr. Qiu obtained a master’s
degree in optical engineering from Changchun University of Science
and Technology in July 2014.

Ms. Wang Mingzhu (ERAER), aged 42, is a general manager of Sunny
Opotech. She is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Opotech. Ms. Wang obtained a master’s degree in electronics and
communication engineering from Fudan University in 2007. She
joined the Group in April 2014 and held positions including manager
of product development department, associate director of R&D
centre and executive deputy general manager of Sunny Opotech.
She has been the general manager of Sunny Opotech since 2020.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wang was engaged in the activities
relating to R&D and manufacturing of semiconductors and optics in
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation and Konica
Minolta.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREERE

Mr. Wang Zhongwei (E &), aged 42, is a general manager of Sunny
Optical Intelligence. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Optical Intelligence. Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree
in optical engineering from Changchun University of Science and
Technology in 2010. He joined the Group in September 2001. He
held positions including manager of marketing department, deputy
general manager and general manager of Sunny Opotech. Mr. Wang
was awarded the titles of “National Electronic Information Industry —
Influential People” by China Electronics Enterprises Association and
“2016 Top 10 Yong Shang of Ningbo City” in 2016. Mr. Wang served
as the vice-president of the Institute of Yongshang Development (8
3 EAITE) since April 2017 and as the vice-president of Ningbo
Science & Technology Innovation Association since May 2017.

Mr. Zhang Baozhong (RE ), aged 51, is a general manager of
Sunny Mobility. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Mobility. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
manufacture technique and instrument in 1990 and a master’s degree
in business administration in 2013 from Zhejiang University. He joined
the Group in September 1999 and was engaged in the activities
relating to R&D and administration for many years. He held positions
including executive deputy general manager of Sunny Opotech
and general manager of intelligent equipment business of Sunny
Instruments. In 2014, Mr. Zhang obtained a qualification of senior
engineer issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social
Security Department.

Mr. Lou Guojun (2EE), aged 55, is a general manager of Sunny
Instruments. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Instruments. Mr. Lou obtained a diploma in business enterprise
operation management from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in
1999. Mr. Lou obtained a qualification of senior economist issued
by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008. Senior economist is
a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally granted to a
person who has passed necessary examinations and has acquired
substantial management experience. Mr. Lou joined the Group in June
1984.

Mr. Weng Jiuxing (8 /1.2), aged 49, is a general manager of Sunny
Intelligent Technology. He is responsible for the daily administration
of Sunny Intelligent Technology. Mr. Weng graduated from Zhejiang
Normal University in 1995 and obtained a postgraduate diploma in
digital strategy and business transformation from the University of
Hong Kong in 2013. Mr. Weng joined the Group in July 1995 and
served various positions, including workshop supervisor, deputy head
of corporate governance department, deputy head of manufacturing
department and head of quality control department. Prior to his
appointment as the general manager of Sunny Intelligent Technology in
July 2015, Mr. Weng served as the director of information technology
department of the Group.
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The Directors are convinced that the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group must have good corporate
governance elements so as to promote effective accountability and
deliver maximum benefits to the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company complied with
all of the code provisions of and adopted most of the recommended
best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate
Governance Code”, applicable to financial reports for the periods
subsequent to 1 April 2012) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Corporate governance structure and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows.

THE BOARD
Board Functions

Being accountable to the shareholders, the Board is responsible for
facilitating the further development of the Company’s business by
directing and guiding the business developments and operations in a
responsible and effective manner. Board members have a duty to act
in good faith, with due diligence and care and in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

While the Company’s business operations are supervised by the
executive Directors and managed by the qualified members of
management, the decisions which are to be taken by the Board
include:

Setting the Company’s missions and values;

Formulating strategic directions of the Company;

Reviewing and guiding corporate strategies;

Setting performance objectives and monitoring implementation

and corporate performance;

5. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between
the management and Board members;

6. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and those
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems
for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law;
and

7. Performing the corporate governance function, being responsible

for the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance

and reviewing the corporate governance report.
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Board Composition

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the business of the issuer to ensure that the changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The Company
is committed to the view that the Board should maintain a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) so that the Board has a strong
independence to make the independent and objective judgment. The
Board currently comprises 7 Directors, including:

Name of Director

EEHA

EESEM

ESARBETAREARORERER -
UHERETENENEETEERN TV ENE
Bl - ARRIRE  EESMHITEIFNT
EX (BRELFNTESR) ABEYE - HBIR
EFEREBY  IWMELBYEEHE - EF
SMEH7TRESMAN - B

Executive Directors #17E%
Mr. Ye Liaoning

ERERAE

Mr. Sun Yang

HorE A

Mr. Wang Wenjie

EXARNELE

Non-executive Director EHTEE

Mr. Wang Wenijian
TXERYE

Independent non-executive Directors BV & iTEE
Mr. Zhang Yuqing

RARELE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun

TSER S E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong

ARIPER 4
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Each of the Directors has entered into a continuous service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
date of appointment or re-appointment. The Company is committed
to the view that the independent non-executive Directors should
be of sufficient calibre and number to warrant that their views
are acknowledged. Biographical details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out in the section “Directors and Senior
Management” in this Annual Report. The independent non-executive
Directors are in absence of any business or other relationships with the
Group which could interfere in any material manner with the exercise
of their independent judgment. The composition of the Board as at
the date of this Annual Report is set out in the section “Directors and
Senior Management” in this Annual Report. None of the Directors has
any financial, business, family relationships or relationships in other
material aspects with each other. Each of independent non-executive
Directors has given a written confirmation to the Company confirming
that he has met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
regarding the guidelines for the assessment of independence of
Directors respectively. The Company believes that the all independent
non-executive Directors have complied with the relevant guidelines as
stipulated in such rule and are still considered as independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The Company has implemented a set of formal, prudent and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. The Company has also put in place plans for orderly
succession of the Board. All Directors are subject to re-election
regularly in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Board
must explain the reasons for the resignation, re-designation or removal
of any Director.

Responsibilities of Directors

Every Director is aware that he should devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Directors are kept informed from time to time on the latest
development of any changes to the regulatory requirements and the
progress of compliance with applicable rules and regulations by the
Company. The Directors are also updated from time to time on the
latest business development and operation plans of the Company.
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In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of Corporate Governance
Code, the Company arranges and provides fund for all the Directors
to participate in continuous professional development organised in
the form of in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses
to keep them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of
the Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the Listing
Rules and Corporate Governance Code and corporate governance
practices. Newly appointed Director would receive an induction training
covering the statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and
senior management by the Company, where appropriate, to ensure
the awareness of Corporate Governance Code and best practices.

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During
the year of 2019, all Directors received a total of over 180 hours of
trainings, including internally-facilitated sessions as well as external
seminars/programmes on topics relevant to their duties as Directors.

To summarise, the Directors have received the below trainings to
enhance their skills and knowledge during the year:

RBTREREARTUGRXFEAGLME - AAFH

EE2MAREE - e EMEE
MREFANFEEXRRFHLHFALRHE
T EREFEHEME - RERHAEERE
EHEER - KERFERBER - LHAA
RERERATARERNEHBERIES TE
FHRELAME - TR ENEFTHEZAPIE
g ABRBRRLTRAREFAEEERT - 4
NREEHEEEBATAEERSREEERL
B  MARREFANBLEE AT RE
EER -

MBEFH2EBEEXER  BRYIEHME
BN EE  NERHEEBEAGEZEEMRK
DEMBENRBEATHESSELERM - R=F
—NEERN - MBEEEHED THEB180/NE
MY BREASRESEALEEEREN
X REMINIIE ] RRIE o

BEKE  EFRFADEIUTHEI - A
5R R S RO B RE M AT

Training area
B A

Strategy
management
and
implementation
BB
BT

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ye Liaoning EEELAE v
Mr. Sun Yang HkgEE v
Mr. Wang Wenjie ITuREE v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wang Wenjian EXELE v
Independent non-executive BYEHITES

Directors
Mr. Zhang Yuging RRESLE v
Mr. Feng Hua Jun REFRRE v
Mr. Shao Yang Dong ARIPER A4 v
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Regarding the Listing Rules’ requirement for Directors to obtain
a general understanding of an issuer’s business and to follow up
anything that comes to their attention, it is considered that the current
arrangements for keeping the Board informed timely of the Company’s
business performance through regular presentations and/or reports
by the management at Board meetings, providing Directors with
complete, sufficient and adequate information, and providing the Board
with timely reports on urgent key events at special Board meetings are
effective, and have satisfied the requirements. A monthly management
report, covering key business issues and the financial performance
of the Company, has been made available to Directors on a monthly
basis throughout the year. All Directors can contact the management
of the Company individually and independently.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ye Liaoning, being the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for
formulating the Group’s policies and making decisions. Mr. Sun Yang,
being the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is responsible
for the overall daily operation and management of the Group. This
segregation of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company aligns with the requirement under the code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

There are 3 independent non-executive Directors in the Board, all
of whom possess adequate independence. Therefore, the Board
considers that the current structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
business of the Group.
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THE ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board were held. During the year, the Board
convened 8 meetings having considered the business developments
and the needs of the Company. In addition, special meetings of the
Board would be held when necessary. Details of each of the Director’s
attendance record in full meetings of the Board are as follows:

Name of Director

EEHE

Mr. Wang Weniian (Honorary Chairman) EXELRE (FEELRE)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) BEELLE ()

Mr. Sun Yang R A

Mr. Wang Wenijie FXAREAE

Mr. Zhang Yuging RREBSEE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun TER LA

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRIP4

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.

Directors are consulted for matters to be included in the agenda
for regular Board meetings. Dates of regular Board meetings are
scheduled at least 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notices to
all Directors, ensuring that they are given an opportunity to attend. For
all other Board meetings, reasonable notices will be given. Minutes
of all Board meetings and meetings of committees are kept by the
Company Secretary. Drafts and final versions of minutes are sent to
all Directors for their comments and record respectively, in both cases
within a reasonable time after the meeting.

During the year of 2019, as part of the commitment to best practices,
all Directors attended electronic correspondences in respect of certain
business development of the Group. Such arrangement ensured fast
and timely provision of information to Directors, to supplement the
formal Board meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established and delegated authorities and
responsibilities to four specific committees with written terms of
reference to assist the Board to perform its functions effectively,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Strategy and Development Committee. The terms of
reference for Board committees have been published on the Group’s
website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) and the website of the
HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.
hk) for shareholders to review.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee comprises 3 members,
namely Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr. Shao Yang Dong (both are
independent non-executive Directors) and Mr. Wang Wenjian (non-
executive Director).

The principal roles and functions performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year include:

a) Reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

b) Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship according to the
stipulated nomination procedures;

c) Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors according to the requirements under the Listing Rules;
and

d) Making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters related
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
plan for Directors.
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Meeting of the Nomination Committee is held at least once a year.
2 meetings were held in 2019. The attendance of each member at
Nomination Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEHE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (Chairman) BEFLE (FE)
Mr. Wang Wenjian EXELE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRI S A&

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following policy for the nomination of
directors (the “Nomination Policy”).

Selection Criteria

In determining the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination Committee
and the Board shall consider the potential contributions a candidate
can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity. The Nomination Committee and
the Board shall consider the following selection criteria, which are not
meant to be exhaustive:

e the candidate’s personal ethics, reputation, character and integrity;
e the candidate’s qualifications, skills, knowledge, business
judgment and experience that are relevant to the operations of the

Group;

e the diversity perspectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company (as amended from time to time);
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e the candidate’s availability including time commitment to discharge
his or her responsibility as a Director, including being able to
devote sufficient time to attend Board meetings, participate in
induction, trainings and other Board and Company associated
activities (In the case of a candidate who will be nominated as
an independent non-executive Director will be holding his or her
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the Nomination
Committee should consider the reasons given by the candidate
for being able to devote sufficient time to discharge his or her
responsibility as an independent non-executive Director);

e the candidate for the position of an independent non-executive
Director must comply with the independence criteria as prescribed
under the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time);

e the current size and composition of the Board, the needs of the
Board and the respective committees of the Company;

e the succession planning of members of the Board to ensure the
leadership continuity and smooth functioning of the Group; and

e any other factors that the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee and the Board shall ensure that the
composition of the Board is in conformity with the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The recruitment, identification, evaluation, recommendation,
nomination, selection and new appointment or re-appointment of
each proposed Director shall be assessed and considered by the
Nomination Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria as
set out in this Policy.
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L EERRE

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board:

e the Nomination Committee may take such measures that it
considers appropriate in connection with its identification and
evaluation of candidates, including but not limited to considering
referrals from the Directors, shareholders, management and
advisors of the Company;

e the Nomination Committee shall identify and ascertain the
character, qualification, knowledge and experience of the
candidate and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such candidate; and

e the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations by
submitting the candidate’s personal profile to the Board for its
consideration.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation for the candidate to stand
for re-election at a general meeting.

For each proposed new appointment or re-appointment of a Director,
the Nomination Committee shall obtain all applicable declarations and
undertaking as required under the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time).

In the case of a nomination for the position of an independent non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee shall ensure that the
concerned candidate meets the independence criteria as prescribed
under the Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of candidates to stand for election (and re-election)

at a general meeting.

The ultimate responsibility for the selection and appointment of
Directors rests with the entire Board.
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Review and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will from time to time review the
Nomination Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure the
effectiveness and compliance with the regulatory requirements at the
relevant time and good corporate governance practice.

The Nomination Committee shall, when necessary, recommend
revisions to the Nomination Policy to the Board for its consideration
and approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”).

Background and Vision

People-oriented and diversity is one of the Company’s core value. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

Policy Statement

The Company believes that board diversity can enhance decision-
making capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with
organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group thinking.
With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a wide range of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, business perspectives, skills, knowledge and
length of service, and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed
on ensuring a balanced composition of skills and experience for the
Board members in order to provide a range of perspectives, insights
and challenge that enable the Board to discharge its duties and
responsibilities effectively, support good decision making in view of
the core business and strategy of the Group, and support succession

planning and development of the Board.
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Board Diversity BEEgREZ L

The current Board’s composition under diversified perspectives is Zt/bEE FERKESSMEMAMMMT ¢
summarized as below:

Shao Yang
Ye Liaoning SunYang Wang Wenjie Wang Wenjian Zhang Yuging Feng Hua Jun Dong
BRE B TR TNE RRE BEE BRIER
Male Male Male Male Male Male Male
5 S 5 3 5 5 S
54 47 52 72 72 56 50
Financial management
BHER v v/ v/ v/
Operation management
BeEl v/ v/ v/ / v/ /
Capital market
EXmiE v v/ / v/
Risk management
BRER v/ v/ v/ 4 v/ v/ v/
Strategic planning
BREE v v/ v v v v v
Board committee leadership
experience
EZZE20EER v/ v v/ v /
Optical industry and other
related industries
experience
KBTXRAMARTRER v v/ v/ v/ v/ v v/
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s Nomination
Policy and will take into account this Policy. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board, considering the benefits of diversity on the Board
and also the needs of the Board without focusing on a single diversity
aspect.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of gender
diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. The Board also
aspires to having an appropriate proportion of directors who have
direct experience in the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic
backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Continuous Monitoring

The Board reviews regularly and assesses annually on the Group’s
diversity profile including gender balance of the Directors, senior
management and employees, and its progress in achieving its diversity
objectives. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions on
this Policy that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for its consideration and approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The members of the Remuneration
Committee included Mr. Shao Yang Dong, Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr.
Zhang Yuging (all are independent non-executive Directors).

The principal roles and functions performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year include:

(@) Making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management;

(b) Assessing the performance of the executive Directors;

(c) Approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts, determining
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of the non-executive Directors;

(d) Reviewing and approving remuneration by reference to corporate
goals resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(e) Reviewing and approving the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with resignation
or termination of their positions or appointments.
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TEERRE

The meeting of the Remuneration Committee is held at least
once a year and when required. 2 meetings were held in 2019.
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
remunerations and bonus payable to executive Directors and senior
management for the financial year. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee has reported to the Board on the proceedings of the
meeting. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2019
are set out in Note 13 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. The attendance of each member at Remuneration
Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

Exgs

Mr. Shao Yang Dong (Chairman) BRIPER A (/)
Mr. Feng Hua Jun TERTE

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARBE L

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Group’s audited final results for the year ended
31 December 2019 were reviewed by all the members of the Audit
Committee, namely Mr. Zhang Yuging, Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr.
Shao Yang Dong (all are independent non-executive Directors).

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by the
management. The work done and findings of the Audit Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, the issues which
were brought to the attention of the management and the Board were
not material and therefore no discussion is required in this Annual
Report. Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Drafts and final versions of minutes are sent to
all members of the Audit Committee for their comments and record
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.
Sufficient resources (including the advice of external auditor) will be
allocated to the Audit Committee to discharge its duties.
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The principal roles and functions performed by the Audit Committee
include:

(@) Considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving their remuneration, and addressing any question of their
resignation and dismissal,

(b) Reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
of the Group together with the Company’s interim and annual
reports;

(c) Maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Group’s external
auditors;

(d) Reviewing the continuing connected transactions; and

(e) Overseeing the Group’s financial controls and internal controls.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, 2 Audit Committee meetings
were held. The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2018, external auditor’s remuneration,
internal control system and interim report for the period ended 30
June 2019 at the relevant meetings and reached unanimous consent
to recommend the aforesaid be approved by the Board. The chairman
of the Audit Committee reported to the Board on the proceedings of
these meetings. The Board has not taken any view that deviated from
that of the Audit Committee.

Furthermore, another meeting was held on 16 March 2020 to review,
inter alia, the annual report and financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the report from external auditor
on the audit of the Group’s financial statements, the continued non-
exempt connected transactions, internal control system review and the
re-appointment of external auditor.
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TEERRE

The attendance of each member at Audit Committee meetings is as
follows:

Name of Director

EEpng

Mr. Zhang Yuging (Chairman) RRESE (£E)
Mr. Feng Hua Jun ISER S E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BMNER A4

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

The Company’s Strategy and Development Committee comprises
5 members, namely Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang
Wenjie (all are executive Directors), Mr. Wang Wenjian (a non-
executive Director) and Mr. Feng Hua Jun (an independent non-
executive Director). The primary duty of the Strategy and Development
Committee is to advise the Board on the Group’s strategy for business
development and future prospects in the international market for
optical related products. It is intended that members of this committee
shall consist of local and international experts in the optical industry
and other related industries. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
4 meetings were held by the Strategy and Development Committee.
During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee handled
matters in relation to the development strategy of the Group and the
new development plan of the Group and their implementation.
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The attendance of each member at Strategy and Development
Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEgE

Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) HE@EELE (FFE)
Mr. Sun Yang Bkt

Mr. Wang Wenjie FXRFEE

Mr. Wang Wenjian EELA

Mr. Feng Hua Jun IEE S E

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the terms of reference for the corporate
governance functions on 22 December 2011 in compliance with the
code provision D.3 of the Corporate Governance Code which was
adopted on 1 April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
corporate governance function, the Board shall be responsible for
developing, reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company; carrying out training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; and reviewing and monitoring compliance with policies
and practices in legal and regulatory requirements of the Company.
The Board has performed the above-mentioned corporate governance
functions and this corporate governance report has been reviewed by
the Board in discharge of its corporate governance functions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. After having made specific enquiry
with regard to securities transactions by the Directors, all Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the required standards set out
in the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s approval of appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Deloitte”) as the Company’s
external auditor for 2019. Its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report of this
Annual Report on pages 110 to 115. Details of the amount of auditors’
remuneration in 2019 are set out in Note 10 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company has also paid fees
amounting to HK$3,150,000 to the auditor for audit service and review
service as a reporting accountant during the year. Besides these,
Deloitte also provided tax filing services and consulting services to the
Company and charged a service fee of approximately RMB727,550.
Other than as disclosed above, Deloitte did not provide any other
services to the Group.

Deloitte will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at AGM
of the Company to be held on 22 May 2020. The re-appointment of
Deloitte as the external auditor of the Group has been recommended
by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the Board, subject to the
shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming AGM.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for keeping formal accounting records
and preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Directors have made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Management has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as it would enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information during the Board’s approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities

for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in this Annual Report.
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The Board’s responsibility is to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extended to annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as
well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s internal control
system and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board, the Group’s internal
audit department and the management reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
Audit Committee reviews the findings and opinions of the Group’s
internal audit department and the management on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control system, and reports to the Board
on such reviews. In respect of the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Board considered the internal control system is adequate and
effective. No significant areas of concern which might affect the
shareholders were identified.

The internal audit department of the Group should ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment interests and the Group’s assets safety.
The main functions of the internal audit department are to audit the
operating efficiencies of each subsidiary of the Company, to audit
upon resignation of key management personnel, to assist the Board
in reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group, to review internal control of business processes, to audit
the implementation of overall risk management, to promote the
construction of anti-malpractice and to audit individual projects (such
as compliance of related party transactions and audit report of goods
in transit). Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational compliance controls and risk management functions will be
conducted annually by the Board.
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CEERRE

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the risk management
and has authorized the Audit Committee to act as the professional
committee to professionally review the risk management reports
submitted by the management, ensuring that the management has
fulfilled its responsibilities to establish effective risk management
and internal control systems. Systems and procedures have been
established by the Group to identify, assess, manage and monitor
various risks including strategy, financing, market, operation and laws
that may have impacts on the Group and each major department.

The Company has built an enterprise risk management (‘ERM”)
system with a view to enhancing the risk management and corporate
governance practice, and improving the effectiveness and efficiency of
internal control systems across the whole Group.

The Group has organised and established a risk management group
(“Risk Management Group”) headed by the Chief Executive Officer,
responsible for daily management related to risks of the Group. All of
the Group’s subsidiaries have also established risk management team,
responsible for risk management of their own. At the same time, the
Group has engaged a world-renowned consultant institution as the
risk management consultant to assist the Group in building effective
risk management overall framework so as to ensure the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
programmes and relevant budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function.

The Board believes that a heightened focus on risk and compliance is
beneficial for the ongoing development and growth of the Company
as well as its staff. In establishing the ERM system, all key functions of
the Company were carried out by the Risk Management Group of the
Group to undertake the following exercises:

1. Enterprise risk assessment — to identify and prioritise the Group’s
key business risks;

2. Enterprise risk response — to assess the related internal controls
and risk mitigating measures;
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3. Risk management implementation monitoring — to review the
inspection report on implementation of risk management and
follow up with the response situation monthly;

4. Build the library of key risk indicators — to recognise existing risk
indicators, monitor the running conditions of the indicators and
timely make pre-warning of risk; and

5. Improve the risk checklist — to identify and build a risk checklist
which is suitable to the actual situation of the Company.

Summary of Work in 2019

During the year, the Risk Management Group of the Group reported

to the Audit Committee on the annual risk assessment and internal

control reviews. Its work in 2019 included:

e Improved the Group’s risk management policy and ERM function;

e Optimised the Group’s risk management objective, principal and
organization;

e  Optimised the basic procedure of corporate risk management;

e Organized risk management training and self-assessment coaching
for each business segment and department;

e Completed the risk identification and assessment in each business
segment and department to form a risk management self-
assessment report;

e Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management system, and significant and emerging risks with
department heads;

e |ssued the risk management self-assessment report of the Group;

e Organized each business segment and department to develop a
specific contingency plan for key risks;
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i

*EAWE

Completed internal control review of key business processes of
each business segment and department;

Completed the trial run of the risk identification on key risk
indicators (“KRI”) in each business segment and department;

Monitored the operating results of the KRI per month and gave a
timely warning on the indicator results;

Monitored the implementation of the response measures of the
monitor risks per month and revised the response plan in a timely
manner;

Completed the implementation of the annual risks and the KRI
checking;

Optimized the assessment criteria of the risk management and a
risk list database;

Collected the major risk events in each business segment and
department per month and formed a risk event database; and

Held the annual conclusion meeting of risk management and
commenced the self-evaluation of risk management for 2020.

Risk Management Policy Framework

Effective risk management and internal control systems are critical in

achieving the Group’s strategic objectives. The Group has established

a risk management policy framework, which is approved by the Board
and the Audit Committee, and executed by the Risk Management

Group.

It authorizes the Group to mandates a consistent and

effective approach applied across the Group to fully manage the risks

associated with strategies, financing, operations, market and laws.
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The following key processes are adopted under the Group’s ERM
framework.

Phase 1

Establish Risk Context

The Board establishes common risk assessment criteria and sets up
risk reference tables for the Group. Meanwhile, Risk Management
Group of the Group and risk management group of each business
segment discuss and formulate overall risk management objectives,
management requirements and organization methods.

Phase 2

Risk Identification

Each business segment and department collects risk information
related to the Group and identifies the risks that potentially impact
the key processes of the operations. The Group also identifies
opportunities for improvement.

Phase 3

Risk Assessment

Each business segment and department uses uniform and quantitative
criteria to assess the identified risks along with their impacts on the
business and the possibility of their occurrence to determine the risk
level.

Phase 4

Risk Treatment

Each business segment and department determines the overall
response strategy and corresponding response plan for the assessed
risks as well as the implementation measures such as risk taking, risk
aversion, risk transfer and risk reduction to deal with the risks.

Phase 5

Risk Monitoring & Reporting

Each business segment and department continues to follow up the
operation situation of KRI, implementation and effectiveness of the risk
response plan, makes timely risk pre-warning, adjusts response plan
and reports risks regularly to the appropriate management levels within
the Group.

With this practical and effective framework, risk management has been
integrated into each functional department.
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TEERRE

Group’s Risk Report

The Group faces various

risks and uncertainties. The relevant key risks

are the risks that the Group must take in order to achieve its strategic

objectives. If they are not handled properly, it might bring adverse

impact to the operations of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive risk

assessment and risk mitigation measures help ensure these key risks

are properly managed and effectively controlled. The followings are

the principal risks that the Board has identified for the year ended 31

December 2019.

Business and -
Strategic Risk
E3 N

Operational Risk
EERR
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SEERRE

rEEHHEERRE I RERNE  ARTE
Rl HASESEIRLEEBFMOAERTH
Rk - HRBEZERE AL HAKERNE
LEHEEANEE - 2R G R E B
BRI ERRFIEZEENAN
2Hl - AT HEFEHE_FT-AF+=A
=t+—BULEFEDRNNEERR -

Group’s major risks

FEEIERR

Subject to the change in business, economy,
competitiveness, regulatory or political
environment in the region where the Group
operates, or change in the Group’s business
performance, prospects for development and/or
the ability to implement its strategy may result in
significant adverse impact to the Company.

AREEBERR  BRASKR/JEEEHBRNLE
NATEEEERENRNEE KE HBF
EEIWARGAL  UREARARIEATH

=27
2R

Safe Production Risks:

ZREEAR:

Material accidents affecting safe production
of equipment and facilities, property safety,
occupational disease hazards of employees and
enterprise’s continuous operations may occur as
a result of enterprise’s internal and other factors.
ROENPEREMY RGBT ERE &
BREEE  MERY BIREREENRTE
PERBEENEARESNE
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Key control and treatment plan(s)
FTEEHREERLR

Proactive monitoring the industry trends,
competitors and innovative products;
REBERT¥BY  GFUFREMERD:

Proactive monitoring of and preparation for global
and local changes in regulations which may affect
the Group; and
BEEENEEEHT LY EARENZ RS
EERDIZE R

Implementing corresponding project monitoring to
increase strategic flexibility and specially allocate
resources for strategy.
g?ﬁ%ﬁ@%@'%wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
IR o

Enhancing staff's safe production training,
organizing safety training and drills irregularly,
enhancing employees’ safety awareness and
establishing safety and emergency mechanism;
MEBIZ2EER  TERARZ2HIRE
%vﬁﬂél?%%%vﬁ@ﬁ?%@%ﬁ@%
|

Strengthening the daily monitoring and timely
overhauling of various equipment, and carrying
out safety and foolproof transformation of
equipment; and
MEEBRENAFERARBRE  WHREE
TREMRRE : &

Participating in property insurance and purchasing
insurance for the staff.
LNHERRRAEIRERR -

Target risk trend
AERBRER
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Key control and treatment plan(s)

P Target risk trend

BRRRER

Group’s major risks
rEETERR

Human Resource Risks:

ADERER :

The demand of the Group’s development cannot
be fulfilled if there is a lack of labor, which
thereby affects the Group’s production plan and
operation. It might render the Group’s products
or production methods uncompetitive; and
AMEFRETR  REAEENERERELGIRD
MRV FEASENEEHERAT  THERASEN
ERREEFERERTN R

Failure in the optimization of human resource
allocation and insufficient incentive mechanisms
may lead to loss of talents, work stoppages and
other labour related issues, which may adversely
affect the Group’s operation.
ANEBRAENERE M ARABENTR - Brae
SIBAZTRA  BIREMATIHE HASENELHE
RAFIZE -

Public Safety Emergency Risks:
REMR2EHER

Due to external factors, public safety emergency
may affect the enterprise as a going concerm.
For example, with the increasing number of
people infected by COVID-19, the emergency
response level of Epidemic prevention and control
in Zhejiang Province was adjusted to level one,
and it's probable that there are infected matters
caused by the Epidemic during the process of
overall promotion on Epidemic prevention and
resumption of production, which may have an
impact on ordinary operation of the Group.

OBREMY REAAZ2SHTREYEL
EMREEE M BEECOVID- 198 L AHH
B% NIAREHARSEREARER A
ERERERENERETEERRT THE%
ERERFEN  VEAERNERES

Carrying out organization diagnosis, developing
talent plan that matches the Company's
strategies to replenish talents in advance;
FRABDE  HTAARDBHBEENHALRE - 75
BAL

Expanding recruiting channel and recruiting
management team;

hREERE BAREBEREY:

Actively promoting the production line
automation;
BEEEEERAD

Carrying out inventory and assessment of
talents regularly, hiring and retaining talents with
attractive incentive program;

TEEE A ETRE R - WUEFRA NN RZEE 2
ERRERAT

Carrying out multilevel talent development
program to improve staff's professional skill; and
RESEROATERHE RREINEBKT R
Strengthening corporate culture building to

enhance staff's satisfaction and engagement.
MARERRTIME RASTNEREHER «

Establishing contingency plans for public safety
emergencies and defining the management
responsibility of each business segment and
department;

BURBMAZL2EHERER  BRESEHN
HEMERRE :

Establishing emergency management teams for
public safety emergencies, members of which
included the management above deputy general
managers of all subsidiaries and the personnel
in safety departments, and holding emergency
management meetings on a regular basis;
RURFAHZISHESER M HEAREK
WEAREBEE FEBABMZ2EAHIA
B UEHARREEHERSE

Implementing grid management and emergency
management work to all grid leaders, and carrying
out publicity and management to all employees;
and

BOERLER ZEBNESTRIEARIE
MR EERERERENE-NEI R

Following the national, provincial and municipal
Epidemic prevention work arrangements and
timely adjusting the Epidemic prevention work of
the Group.

ZRER 4 THERIERH  EREEARE
BRI

BFREME (KE) R AT « 2019 &
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Market Risk
mEER

80

BERlE

Group’s major risks

FEEIERR

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Risks:

HERMEER -

International exchange rate fluctuations could
result in significant foreign currency losses.
Significant floating rate liabilities could result in
higher cost of financing if current interest rates
increase.

BIREXRE AL BHE RMEEE - R
i BARE SR RERRERAEN -

Market Competition Risks:
HEREAR

Incapable of identifying and analyzing the
demands in the industry and market with the
intensified market competition might result in the
risk of lower eamings for the Company; and

HRTRAT 53 Aﬁ% ﬁﬂ TN T R R
MERFOME AR AW EERE TROA

B R

The Company might not satisfy the change in
market demand if there are failures to master the
context of the new products and new technology
application, customers’ uncertain demand upon
the launch of new products and new technology,
failure for the customers to assess and evaluate
the new products might, resulting in the risk for
adverse impact on the Company’s benefit.
HERIFRMEANSZERE - FERAHR
RAR - REPELTARE &P YHERMNT
EAINMBERTFEIR KRR TSR RNE
b FEARRMGENER o
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Key control and treatment plan(s)
FTEEHREERLR

Maximising natural hedging position by setting

up offshore factories and matching currencies in

sales and procurements contracts; and

BRERNREIHE RFRAONEERY &
ERBAREIUR R

Implementing centralized management of
foreign exchange funds of domestic companies,
coordinating the foreign exchange funds of
various subordinate companies to implement
centralized foreign exchange payments,
conducting exchange rate lock-in operations to
reduce exchange rate exposure, and reducing
exchange rate risk.
ERNARNMNERSETER  REXMELA
MNEES - ﬁﬁ%[ﬁ¢§ﬁ TETEXHFS
BENASEXHO  REEXREER -

Focusing on industry and terminal development
trends in real time, laying out product lines in
advance, and enhancing product value in respond
to changes in market demand at any time;
EREITERKGERBY  RAMRERSR
RAEREE JEREETRRERNEL

Keeping close eyes on the market dynamics,
continuously seeking new markets or new
customer, and maintaining good relationships
with customers; and

TRETEDE  HENENTENFEF &
BEFPRIERIOAIERE : R

Continuously tracking customers’ demand and
developing capacity plan to ensure product
supply, and keep inventory within the safety
standards.

AHBRGREPER - HITERLRE  IRBERMR
B UREREHEZ2RER -

Target risk trend
AERRER



Group’s major risks

AEEEEER

Customer Credit Risks:
EERER :

The unreasonable design of the customer credit
management policy and the failure to implement
the credit policy may result in the Company risk
for bad debt losses and impaired economic
interest.

EPERERHERNTER  GREXK ﬁﬁ?U
fii - TRERARREEEREARR - RALT

%@ﬂé§ﬁ°

Information System and Information Security
Management Risk:
REAREGER2EEAR

Lack of and unreasonable planning of the
information system and unfulfilled construction of
information security management system might
fail to support the business operations effectively,
resulting in inefficient management for the
Company.

ERERRZAMBLLE - 25 z%a@%?ﬁ
SRH - NEAE AT BERES  TEER
ARAEEERUEET -
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Key control and treatment plan(s)
FEEHREERLR

Improving the credit management system,
regularly reviewing the credit assessment of
customers, and adjusting the credit limit;
TERPEREENE YR BUEFETERT
Y HREREE

Conducting risk customer screening management
when choosing new customers, and tighter
management on business terms and conditions
for high-risk customers in the early stage;
NEPRERETERELHRER  SERER
ASETER R RIREE

Participating in accounts receivable insurance to
reduce bad debt losses; and
SIENERRE  BOBERS R

Strengthening the supervision and management
of risk indicators, early warning the trend in credit
change and analyzing reasons for trend change.
MARBEREREER RARLEEREDE
MGl S DEGE

Establishing an information security management
system, continuously improving the information
system management system, and the information
security control measures;
@lfﬁtﬁﬁﬁ?? #%%%hb?%ﬁﬁﬂ
B WA EER R 2N

Strengthening the physical security of enterprise
data centers, developing information system/data
backup and information system disaster recovery
plans, standardizing personnel operations to
ensure continuity in the information system
business; and

MACEERLNNERS  IRESRS /&
Fﬁfﬁmu%?“%ﬁéﬁﬁ REASBRIE
BRESZNEREEN Rk

Strengthening protective measures on internal
and external network security and abilities to
prevent viruses to protect information security
and business systems security of the Company.
MEW%*@%t%E hﬁ&ﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬂ'ﬁ
BARAEER2BERZATE
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Group’s major risks

AEETERR
0versgas Investments Risk:
j B

Lack of operational and management experience
in overseas investments, incomplete system
and policy support may cause low efficiency in
overseas investments management and failure in
investments to the Company.

BIREBRERERTE  ZRNBAIBIT
i@ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ%&é%@ﬂ$ﬁT&&ﬁ
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Key control and treatment plan(s)
FTEEHREERLR

Optimizing investment management system,
systematically studying and judging risks in
overseas investment decisions to establish
standard procedures in overseas investment
decisions and countermeasures;
TEREERHE - ZGIHRIEMERRE
BRE BUBMYERRERTERESRN

Optimizing management team building
of overseas investments, strengthening
systematization and standardization in overseas
investments to continuously lower overseas
investments risks; and
TEBIMEERERER - MEEMEZGRI
RS ER  SERERMERR : &

Strengthening management in analysis
of international situations and investment
environment and early warning to continuously
improve abilities in overseas investments
management.
MEBIBHERREBREAMAREERE - HER
FEMREE R

Target risk trend
AERRER
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Group’s major risks

Key control and treatment plan(s)
FEEHREERLR

rEETERR
Legal Risks Risks of Laws and Regulations:

LRER ERERER

Target risk trend
AERRER

Violation or non-compliance with applicable laws
and local regulations where the Group has legal
entities, or breach of contractual liability may
result in adverse publicity.

ERITETERLR a%%ﬁﬂmwﬁﬁW'
%Egé%ﬁf BEA-$ES LN - DR
72 -

Risks of Intellectual Property Rights:
ARERRR

In the process of developing, production
operation and application process, the patents,
trademarks, trade secrets might be illegally
occupied, lost and infringed, which might damage
the Company’s interest; and

27 B BERTIEWME  £ELEREA
imiq:—fﬁbéiﬁ/ﬂﬁﬁ Tk BEXREZR

2 REARANR

Failure to take sufficient measures such as patent
search or non-compliance with evasion may lead
to the risk of infringing other’s patent rights and
infringement litigation.
%ﬁ“%miﬂféiikfﬁm%ﬂﬁmﬁT
Eﬂf?u%ﬁ&m%Aiﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁif$

IR °

Organizing internal audit team and legal team,
and hiring external legal & compliance advisors
for consultation at the same time to seek legal
advice and review the condition for compliance;
AEnSEvEYREEEN  ARZR AR
REREBR NAAEASE SKEBLEEE
B RaafEn

Reviewing the contract by the legal staff; and

BHERARERNAN R

Proactive monitoring of and preparation for global
and local changes in regulations affecting the
Group.
FﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁFﬂT%%é$§Em%ﬁ&$ﬁ
EERDIZY -

Formulating patent application plans for product
projects, applying for patents in time, and
reviewing the list of patents to ensure that patents
are effectively and timely protected to improve the
patent layout; and
HEERERR R EMBAHE - RERFER -
IE%MEEMmE BRENGHARRENE
& TEINBR R

Tracking the entitle product patent management
in the whole process and properly conducting
the appropriate patent infringement search and
analysis work in a timely manner to prevent
mfnngement of others’ patent rights.
HERIFEIREERE - REMIEENE
NEEBRRANIIE  UBILRLHAZFE -

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has carried out
a review of, and the Board has received a confirmation from the

BE_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLFE k&
EEENEBEEFECRGEEEHARENE
EENMABEZZRARENER - BES
SUBBREMNEEFMINEE - ARER
E-NFUREREAUEEEEARENT
R o

management on, the effectiveness of the risk management and internal g &
control system of the Group. No significant areas of concern were
identified by the Board. The Group has not identified any emerging
risks that have significant impacts on operations during 2019.
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Major Initiatives for 2020
In 2020, the Group’s main focuses will continue to be on:

() enhancing internal controls and strategy management system
and supervising the implementation of key risks in each business
segment and department to manage the strategic risks of the
Group;

(i) based on the trial run of KRI, further promoting and expanding
the coverage of KRI by each business segment and department,
standardizing the operating standards of KRI, and carrying out
daily follow-up and risk warning on the operation results;

(i) dynamically identifying the risks that are faced by each business
segment and department, conducting regular supervision
over the risk treatment plan, and continuously promoting the
implementation of the risk treatment plan;

(iv) enhancing the training and coaching of risk management for each
business segment and department, improving the awareness
of risk management and the environment of risk management
continuously; and

(v) focusing on internal communication and integrating the risk
management into the normal management, in order to improve
the awareness and mission of risk recognition and internal control
across the Group.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group deeply knows that enterprise is not an organization only for
maximising its own interests, but also an important driver to facilitate
wealth accumulation of the whole society, advance social civilisation
and promote the sustainable development of the environment.
The management of the Group pays high attention to corporate
social responsibilities. The management monitors the development,
implementation and results of the initiatives carried out by different
departments of the Group, in which the environmental, social and
governance standards have been integrated into their daily operating
activities. Details are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which will be published on 22 June 2020.
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CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS REGARDING
PRICE SENSITIVE AND/OR
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has developed a system with established policies,
processes and procedures across all relevant segments and
departments for complying with the disclosure obligations regarding
price sensitive and/or inside information. The system continues to
be effective. The Company will continue to further enhance its effect
on the business operation, development of the Company and new
regulations and laws with great effort.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company is committed to creating two-way channels of
communication between senior management and investors,
maintaining close relationships with all its shareholders through a
variety of channels and promoting the communication with investors.
The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
to formalise and facilitate an effective and healthy communication
between the Company and the shareholders and other stakeholders,
which is available on the website of the Group (http://www.
sunnyoptical.com). The main communication channels with the

shareholders include:
Investors’ Meetings

Investor presentations are held by the Group in respect of its
annual results and interim results. In addition, the Group’s senior
management and staff from investor relations management department
hold meetings with investors. Investors are provided with the latest
information of the Group, in compliance with applicable laws and

regulations. The Group keeps close contact with the investors.

During the year of 2019, the Group held investor presentations for
2018 annual results and 2019 interim results in Hong Kong separately.
Meanwhile, the Group attended a number of investor meetings
around the world, which include an Investor Day event, 13 non-deal
roadshows and other types of communication activities.
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Annual General Meeting

The AGM is an important platform for shareholders to participate in
discussions, facilitating the communications between the management
of the Group and the shareholders. The AGM is held once a year,
being publicly accessible to all shareholders. The Group’s senior
management answers any questions that shareholders have at the
meeting and the external auditor and legal adviser attend the AGM as
well.

The attendance of each Director at the AGM held in 2019 is as follows:

Names of Director

Mr. Wang Weniian (Honorary Chairman) EXELRE (EEFE)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) HEEBNYE (LE)

Mr. Sun Yang Bk E

Mr. Wang Wenijie FEREAE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun TERE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRI A4

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARESTAE

Note: The meeting was attended by the Directors themselves, and not by an

alternate.

Apart from AGM, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. No EGM was held in 2019.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
or the Articles of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene an EGM following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

86 Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BRRBFERE

BREFAGE —([ERER2ENHNEET
B ERRANEREEEREEETIN - K
RBFARGEFRETIR  GRRHBERAR
R2HE - AEENSREEEEEAE LOE
BRRZ e - IMNEZEED SR RBRE T
FE o

EEFHRER _T-NAFETHRRBFRS
HYRDERIAT

AGM

No. of attendance by Directors (Note)/
No. of meeting
BRRBFAS
ESHERE (M),
BRR™

0/1

11

11

11

11

11

11

it ERBBRGHEER  MIFARBEEHLE

BRERRBFAGI  —BREENEIERE
ARBETIRIMER AR BRRAE LIRFEE
MR R A EBRFEA+DZ —HARRFK
R AEBERAAAREESHALAFAMEEH
EHAR  BREZENABERMEENE
MEFEXZBARBRFHIAE ([BRRFH K
) RIT-NFUEBRABRREFHIAE -

MEHBRRARERMAL EEX A FRER
RERAELBBINRER - ARDHRRZR
MR A EBRARFRE E—BRAAMERF G
BERFRIARE °



Corporate Governance Report

All matters proposed to shareholders for approval shall be submitted
in separate resolutions and resolved by way of poll at the general
meeting. The procedures of conducting a poll are explained in details
to shareholders by the Group prior to the voting, to ensure the
shareholders are familiar with such arrangement. Poll results will be
published on the website of the Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com).

The Group has also maintained the procedure for director nomination
by the shareholders, which has been published on the Group’s website
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com), to ensure the interests of shareholders.

Annual Reports, Interim Reports, Announcements
and Circulars

The Group issues its annual reports and interim reports after publishing
the annual results and the interim results in March and August every
year respectively, so as to periodically review the development of the
Group as well as to update its shareholders with its latest business
information and market trends. In addition, the Group explains to the
shareholders through announcements regarding any major event or
price-sensitive information. For any matter requiring the approval of
the shareholders, the Group holds an extraordinary general meeting
according to the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and issues a circular prior to the specific date of the meeting,
allowing the shareholders to have sufficient time to learn more about
the matters for making voting decisions. All annual reports, interim
reports, announcements and circulars are uploaded to the websites of
HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.
hk) and the Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com).
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CHANGES OF ARTICLES OF THE
ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no changes
in the Company’s Articles of Association. The latest version of the
Company’s Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) and the HKEXnews of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk). Shareholders can
also obtain the details of their rights with reference to the Company’s
Articles of Association.

The Group’s Website

The Group’s website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) offers timely
access to the Group’s press releases and other business information.
Meanwhile, it provides shareholders with the electronic version of
the financial reports, the presentation materials for investors, as well
as the latest news about the Group’s businesses, announcements
and general information, etc. To make contributions to environmental
protection and maintain effective communication with shareholders, the
Group encourages all shareholders to browse the Group’s information
on the website.

Investor Contact and Inquiries
The Group has a dedicated team to maintain contact with investors
and handle shareholders’ inquiries. Should have any inquiries, please

contact the Group’s investor relations management department (Tel:
+86-574-6253 4996; +852-3568 7038; email: ir@sunnyoptical.com).

On behalf of the Board
Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

16 March 2020
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The Directors are pleased to present the 2019 Annual Report, including
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review

Under the multiple pressure of slowing global economic growth, fierce
market competition and complex and volatile environment both at
home and abroad, the Group overcame difficulties and forged ahead by
leveraging on its leading technological advantages, diversified customer
structures and continued adherence to the development strategy of
“Thoroughly Refining the Existing Advantageous Businesses” and in-
depth advancement of talent team. The Group achieved a relatively good
growth in its overall performance. Details of the core business are set out
in the section headed” Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Outlook and Future Strategies

Looking forward to 2020, the Group will thoroughly refine the existing
advantageous businesses and strengthen its overall competitive
advantages. By closely focusing on the transformation from an optical
product manufacturer to a smart optical system solution provider
and the transformation from an instrument product manufacturer to a
system solution integrator, the Group will increase investments in new
businesses and foster new business growth points. The Group will
strengthen the construction of talent teams and enterprise culture, so
as to improve the quality of talents.
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Major Financial and Business Performance

Indicators

Major financial and business performance indicators of the Group include
revenue, gross profit margin, ratio of operating expenses, profit for the
year, return on equity, trade receivable turnover days, trade payable
turnover days, inventory turnover days and gearing ratio, etc. Details of
the Group’s revenue, gross profit margin, ratio of operating expenses,
trade receivable turnover days, trade payable turnover days and inventory
turnover days are set out in the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this Annual Report. Details of other major performance
indicators are discussed below.

During the year, the Group’s return on equity increased by approximately
4.5 percentage points to approximately 31.6% compared to that of last
year, mainly due to the increase in the profit for the year. The Group will
continue to increase the return on equity by increasing the profit margins
and earnings per share, etc.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group has formulated some policies in accordance with
environmental regulations, such as conducting environmental impact
assessment for various types of materials or machines prior to making
any purchasing decision during the stage of design and R&D; enhancing
awareness of environmental protection among all employees by
organising environmental protection activities, training programmes and
promotions; and leading a core role by top management of the Group
to establish a well-defined structure and system for environmental
management by outlining corresponding responsibility, scope and policy.

During the daily operations, the Group has paid a close attention to
the latest development of domestic and international environmental
protection laws and regulations to ensure that the environmental policies
are in line with domestic and international standards, as well as global
peers.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations. Any failure to comply with
such requirements may result in termination of the operation permit. The
Group has allocated systems and human resources to ensure continuing
compliance with rules and regulations and sound working relationships
with regulators through effective communications. During the year, the
Group has complied with the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Companies Ordinance, the Restriction of Hazardous
Substances Directive (the “RoHS”) of the European Union, the Regulation
on Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals
(the “REACH”) of the European Union, the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Contract Law and the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant rules and regulations.

Main Risks and Uncertainties

The main business activities of the Group include the production and
sales of relevant products. It is exposed to a variety of main risks
including interest rate risks, foreign exchange rate fluctuation risks, credit
risks, cash flow interest rate risks and liquidity risks. Details of the above
main risks and measures for risk reduction are set out in the section
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

During the year, the Group’s business and profitability growth were
affected by the fluctuations and uncertainties of macroeconomic
situations of mainland China and other countries around the world.
Discrepancies of the monetary policies among major developed
economies are expected to continue to affect the capital and trade
flows as well as the asset price of mainland China. In addition, as the
main business activities of the Group involve such fields as smartphones,
vehicle imaging and sensing systems, security surveillance systems
and optical instruments, they are also subject to relevant market
environments. The long-term business and profitability growth of the
Group are expected to be continuously impacted by variables of the
Chinese macro-economy (including but not limited to consumer and
asset price indices, credit demand and total output value growth) and
qualitative factors (such as the development of political and economic
policies of various countries in the world).
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Relationships with Major Stakeholders

The Group’s success also relies on the support of major stakeholders
including employees, customers, suppliers, regulators and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are considered to be the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The purpose of human resource management of the Group
is to reward and praise the staff with excellent performances through the
provision of generous remuneration package, the implementation of the
comprehensive performance evaluation plan and the Restricted Share
Award Scheme. Besides, the Group formulates an appropriate training
plan based on various positions, duties and titles and provides certain
opportunities and platforms to assist the employees in developing and
getting promoted within the Group.

Customers

The major customers of the Group are handset terminal manufacturers,
handset camera module manufacturers, vehicle equipment integrators
and so on. The Group is committed to providing its customers with
superior products and services so as to strive for sustainable growth
in respect of revenue and profitability. The Group has adopted various
means to strengthen communication with its customers, and expanded
different businesses to provide customers with superior products
and services so as to increase market share and improve market
competitiveness.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with the suppliers is essential to the
Group in respect of the supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements. It can achieve cost efficiency
and promote long-term commercial benefits. Major suppliers include
raw material suppliers, system and equipment suppliers, external
consultants providing professional services, suppliers of office supplies
or commodities and other business partners providing the Group with
value-added services.
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Regulators

The Company is subject to the regulation of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Ministry
of Emergency Management of the PRC, State Administration for Market
Regulation and other relevant regulators. The Group expects to ensure
compliance with new rules and regulations as updated from time to time.

Shareholders

The Group distributes certain dividends to its shareholders in order
to reward their support after boosting its business development to
achieve the sustainable profit growth and taking into account the capital
adequacy level, the liquidity and the business expansion needs.

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 116.

The Directors recommend the declaration of a final dividend at the rate
of approximately RMBO0.728 (equivalent to HK$0.810) per share payable
on 24 June 2020 to all persons registered as holders of shares on 28
May 2020.

In order to be qualified for the dividend, the Register of Members will
be closed from 29 May 2020 to 3 June 2020, both days inclusive.
Shareholders should submit share certificates together with transfer
documents to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m. on 28 May 2020.

In order to be qualified for attending the AGM to be held on 22 May
2020, the Register of Members will be closed from 19 May 2020 to
22 May 2020, both days inclusive. Shareholders should submit share
certificates together with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m. on 18
May 2020.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group’s transactions with its major customers and
suppliers during the year are set out below:

In 2019, revenue from the largest customer accounted for approximately
38.7% of the Group’s total revenue compared to approximately 21.9%
of last year. The proportion increased mainly because the customer's
market share increased and the Group sold more high specification
products with relatively high prices to the customers compared to those
of last year. In 2019, revenue from the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 68.4% (2018: approximately 65.2%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

In 2019, the purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 27.2% (2018: approximately 25.0%) and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 53.5% (2018: approximately 53.7%) of the total purchases
of the Group.

At no time during the year did any Director or any shareholder of the
Company have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of property, plant and equipment of the Group,
during the year in the fixed assets, are set out in Note 14 of the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 35 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law amounted to
approximately RMB11,989.4 million (2018: approximately RMB8,627.2
million) including share premium of approximately RMB1.9 million and
retained profits of approximately RMB11,987.5 million.
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DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made charitable
donations of RMB790,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning
Mr. Sun Yang
Mr. Wang Wenijie

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wenjian
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging
Mr. Feng Hua Jun
Mr. Shao Yang Dong

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at least one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. A circular containing the explanatory statement on
repurchase by the Company of its shares, the biographical details of the
director candidates and the notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders
of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of
appointment or re-appointment.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERFTETBRAEHEENR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN BRERRERXE

SHARES

%

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the RIZZE—AFE+Z—A=+—H  REAQTK
BHEMEBEEN ([BERAEHKRH]) £3521%
FEMECMATLE  RBIZETRREM
BHNERARAREBHIINEEREETHR
ABHEBARARKEAMHAEEE (T RF
FREIEGFIEXVED) a9k tn - BRI GN RE
HHE=RABIT ¢

Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or of any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SF0”")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

Approximate

Name of Long/short Number of percentage of

shareholding
RREBABEDL

HETES

BH8E

corporation

=L EEAR

position

%/ KR

Type of interest
xR

Mr. Wang Wenijian The Company Long position Trustee and beneficiary of a 389,091,927 35.47%
trust (Note 1)
INELRE PAN/NG] R ERAXFEARTHA (1)
The Company Long position Beneficiary and founder of a 33,664,133 3.07%
trust (Note 2)
PN e EEXm ARKIZA (FiEE2)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 3) 140,101 0.01%
PN 1) BREA A (K5E3)
Mr. Ye Liaoning The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4) 389,091,927 35.47%
BEELE ARA] i1E EEXmA (Hie)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 5) 2,272,118 0.21%
AR sy) BnEA A (Ki525)
Mr. Sun Yang The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 6) 389,091,927 35.47%
Bk PN 1) fFeEX @A (Hiz6)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 7) 112,113 0.01%
PA/NE] ) BERER A (ME7)
Mr. Wang Wenjie The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 8) 389,091,927 35.47%
IXAREE PAN/NG] R EEXmA (Hize)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 9) 1,653,923 0.14%
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Notes:

M

Mr. Wang Wenijian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.74% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji Limited (“Sun Ji”), which owned 100.00%
equity interest in Sun Xu Limited (“Sun Xu”), which in turn owns 35.47% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian
is deemed to be interested in 389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under
the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenijian is the beneficiary and founder of Sun Guang Trust*. Sun
Guang Trust* is the trust of the entire issued share capital of Sun Guang
Limited (“Sun Guang”), which owns 3.07% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian is deemed to be interested
in 33,664,133 shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 140,101 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.01% of the beneficial interest.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. Accordingly, as a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun
Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be
interested in 389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,272,113 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.52% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.
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Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 112,113 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 5.07% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all
the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjie is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,553,923
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (‘3 {55E") is for identification
purpose only.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives

had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31 December 2019.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 March 2010 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board has adopted the
Restricted Share Award Scheme. According to the Restricted Share
Award Scheme, the Directors, all employees, senior staff, agents and
consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries are entitled to participate
in this scheme. The purpose of the Restricted Share Award Scheme is
to assist the Company in attracting new staff as well as motivating and
retaining its current talents. The Restricted Share Award Scheme shall be
effective from the Adoption Date and shall continue in full force and effect
for a term of 10 years and be managed by its administrative committee
and the trustee. On 16 March 2020, the Board resolved to extend the
Restricted Share Award Scheme period for ten years. As a result, the
Restricted Share Awards Scheme, which shall originally terminate on
21 March 2020, shall now, unless terminated earlier by a resolution
of the Board, terminate on 21 March 2030. Details of the Restricted
Share Award Scheme could be found in the Note 43 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, details of movements of the
shares issued under the Restricted Share Award Scheme were as
follows:
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Date of grant

RTAH

Fair value of
each share
(Note 1)
BRRH
ME (W)
HK$

7 May 2010 1.64
“Z-ZETA+H

14 March 2011 2.67
—E——%=F+1MA

18 August 2011 164
“E—E\Bt/\H

14 March 2012 2.70
—Z-—F=A+MA

Number of shares (Note 2)

RH%E (Wit2)

Granted Vested Lapsed As at
during during during | 31 December
the year the year the year 2019

R-B-1F

RERRHT RENER RERXN | T=A=1-H

Vesting period

BRS

From 6 May 2014

to 6 May 2015
ZZ-MERASA

E-Z-RFRASA
From 13 March 2014

to 13 March 2015
“Z-mE=A+=H

ER-REZAT=H
From 17 August 2014

to 17 August 2015
ZET-mENATLR

ECE-RENATLA
13 March 2016
“2-¥ZR+=H
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Number of shares (Note 2)
RAHEA (M)

Granted Vested
each share As at during during during | 31 December
(Note 1) [1 January 2019 the year 2019
BRRfiz [ R=B-NF RZB-1F
NAE (W) -A-H RERKY [ T=A=1-8 | BRA

Fair value of Lapsed As at

Date of grant the year the year

Vesting period

RTAH RERRH RENER

17 August 2012

“2-"ENAHA

21 December 2012
“E-CEt-ACt-R
9 March 2013
“T-=%ZANA

13 August 2013

~%-ZEN\Rt2A

22 October 2013
“B-CETAZTCA
11 March 2014
Z3-mE=AT-A
15 August 2014

“E2-mENATHR

21 October 2014
“T-mETA-T-R
9 March 2015
Z5-RE=ANA
26 May 2015
ZE-RERACTA
24 August 2015
ZE-RFNAZTEA
15 November 2015

“§-5F+-ATEA

15 April 2016
“Z-\5mATHA
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HK$
BT
3.08

8.69

7.79

9.74

12.46

14.30

17.28

12.26

17.76

2425

261,500

390,250

(261,500) -

(390,250) -

From 16 August 2015

to 16 August 2017
“E-RENATRA

EZT—+EN\RT7A
20 December 2016
“E-AETZACTR
8 March 2017
“T-t¥=A)\R
From 12 August 2016

to 12 August 2017
“E-r"ENATZR

E-E-+E\ATZH
21 October 2017
i Sl S
10 March 2018
—Z2-)\¥=R+H
From 14 August 2017

to 14 August 2018
ZE-tEN\ATMA

EZE-\E\ATEA
20 October 2018
“Z-\§TA=1H
8 March 2019
“2-nNEZANR
25 May 2017
ZE—+ERAZTRA
23 August 2019
“E-NENAZT=H
From 14 November 2017

to 14 November 2018
“E-tEt-ATHE

ECT-\E+—ATEA
14 April 2018
“F-)\FNATEA
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Number of shares (Note 2)

RAHEA (ML)
Fair value of Granted Vested Lapsed As at
each share during during during | 31 December
Date of grant (Note 1) the year the year the year 2019 | Vesting period
shEfH2Z R=Z2-7%
RFAH M (BaE1) RERRH REASE RERKY [ T=A=1-8 | BRA
HK$
B
15 November 2016 37.45 98,135 - (94,647) (3,488) - From 14 November 2018
to 14 November 2019
“B-ET-ATHA 3 \ET-ATRE
EZE-NE+-ATHEA
18 April 2017 55.20 513,018 - (509,282) (3,736) - 17 April 2019
ZE-tERATNR ZE-NERATLR
30 June 2017 70.00 128,460 - (62,246) (4,347) 61,867 29 June 2020
“E-t§RA=TH ZZCRERAZTAA
15 November 2017 140.10 64,636 - (60,319) (4,212) 105 From 14 April 2019
to 14 November 2020
3 tE-AtEA Z2-hFmATAE
E_TCRET-ATEA
16 April 2018 156.00 511,280 - (251,280) (17,080) 242,920 15 April 2020
Z5-\§NATRA ZZ-TENATRR
3 July 2018 144.30 173,732 = (68,320) (4,366) 111,046 From 2 July 2020
to 2 July 2021
“5-\§tA=H ZTCTELACH
E_T--5+ACH
15 November 2018 75.8 372,010 - (173,924) (24,175) 173911 From 14 April 2020
to 14 November 2020
Z5-\§+-ATHA ZTCTENATRA
EZECSET-ATEA
15 April 2019 100.90 - 1,745,572 - (50,863) 1,694,709 From 14 April 2021
to 14 April 2022
“S-NENATRA ZEC-FNATEA
R _§MATMA
2 July 2019 88.20 S 338,931 = (2,196) 336,735 From 1 July 2021
to 1 July 2022
“E-NELACH “Z--E+f-H
E_T-CEYA-A
15 November 2019 123.40 - 306,586 - (2,037) 308,549 14 November 2021
“2-NE+-AThA i S g R gUIE
2,513,021 2,390,089 (1,861,768) (116,500) 2,924,842
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Notes:

(1) The fair value of the shares was calculated based on the closing price per
share on the date of grant.

(2) According to the Group’s internal policy, the shares which have been
granted to the employees (to be promoted later) but not yet vested, will
remain unvested during the promotion year and be carried forward to the
next year after promotion.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period was the Company
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other corporation.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company is empowered by the applicable Cayman Islands
Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of the Association to
repurchase its own shares subject to certain restrictions and the Board
may only exercise this power on behalf of the Company subject to any
applicable regulations imposed from time to time by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. There was no purchase, sale, redemption or writing-off
by the Company, with the exception of the trustees of the Restricted
Share Award Scheme, of the Company’s listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected transactions” of this
report below, no significant contract, to which the Company, its holding
company, its controlling shareholder, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No management contract in force during the year for the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Group’s
business subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DISCLOSURE OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware of, the
following persons or institutions have beneficial interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, or who
is directly and/or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other member of the Group:
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Sun Xu
I
Sun Ji

P8
Mr. Wang Wenijian
EXERE

TMF Trust (HK) Limited
ERERERSE (58)

BRAA
Mr. Ye Liaoning
REELE

Mr. Sun Yang
Brks

Mr. Wang Wenijie
II3RKE
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Long position/

short position/
lending pool
we,/ ke
Al At 4E B R £

Long position
e
Long position

e
Long position
LSy
Long position

e
Long position

e
Long position
S}

Long position
S}
Long position
e
Long position
oY=}
Long position
S}
Long position
R
Long position
e

Type of interest

Rz ER

Beneficial owner

ESBEA

Interest in a controlled corporation

(Note 1)
XEEEER (1)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)
EnfEA A (Fi:E2)
Beneficiary and founder of a trust
(Note 3)
Bt am ARAKLA (FiFE3)
Trustee and beneficiary of a trust
(Note 4)
EREXEARZRA (Hi5E4)
Trustee of a trust (Note 5)
EFEXEEA (H5)

Beneficial owner (Note 6)
EmEA A (Kizke)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 7)
EERmA (ME7)
Beneficial owner (Note 8)
EnfEA A (FiiEs)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 9)
ErEX@mA (MiE9)
Beneficial owner (Note 10)
EaEA A (FizE10)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 11)
EERmA (M)
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Number of
share

BRHBE

389,091,927

389,091,927

140,101

33,664,133

389,091,927

389,091,927

2,272,113

389,091,927

112,113

389,091,927

1,653,923

389,091,927

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

BESNEI L
35.47%

35.47%

0.01%

3.07%

35.47%

35.47%

0.21%

35.47%

0.01%

35.47%

0.14%

35.47%



Notes:

M

As Sun Ji owns more than one-third of the voting power of general
meetings of Sun Xu, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927
shares held by Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 140,101 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is the beneficiary and founder of Sun Guang Trust*.
Sun Guang Trust* is the trust of the entire issued share capital of Sun
Guang, which owns 3.07% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian is deemed to be interested in 33,664,133
shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenijian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.74% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji, which owned 100.00% equity interest in
Sun Xu, which in turn owns 35.47% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under the SFO.

As TMF Trust (HK) Limited is one of the two trustees (together with Mr.
Wang Wenjian) of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust, TMF Trust
(HK) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927 shares held by
Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,272,113 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.01% of the beneficial interest. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.
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Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 112,113 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.52% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,553,923
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 5.07% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all
the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijie is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (“‘Z#Y¢{55E") is for identification
purpose only.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
shareholders of the Company had any interests or short positions in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established connected transaction policy to strengthen
internal control, protect the legitimate interests of shareholders and
improve the corporate governance structure. This policy has defined
the scope of connected parties and connected transactions. It also
requires the Company to disclose the related information of connected
transactions, conduct the annual audit of continuing connected
transactions and follow the principle of the connected transactions
decision-making and abstaining rules.

The Audit Committee shall, in accordance with its roles and functions,
review whether the arrangements for connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions are fair and reasonable. The Audit
Committee judges whether the connected transaction is beneficial to
the Company according to objective criteria, and if necessary, it will
hire professional appraisers or independent financial advisers to give
or provide advice. A director who has any interest in the connected
parties shall abstain when the Board votes on the matter. If necessary,
an independent board committee shall be established to evaluate and
approve the conflict transactions, and the members of the committee
shall not have any independent non-executive director who has significant
interests in the relevant transactions or arrangements.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company review the
Group’s continuing connected transactions every year and confirm that
such transactions meet the following requirements: 1. concluded in
the Group’s daily businesses; 2. conducted in accordance with normal
or better commercial terms; and 3. conducted in accordance with the
agreement on relevant transactions, with fair and reasonable terms
and in line with the overall interests of shareholders of the Company.
The Company has also hired an external auditor to review the Group’s
continuing connected transactions. As disclosed under Note 42 of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, none of the related
party transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2019 constituted a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company has not entered into any connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction.
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INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

No Directors or chief executive of the Company holds any interests in
entities which compete with the Group in any aspects of its business.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and motivate
talented individuals to contribute to the success of its business. The
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated and
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merits,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regards to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme under
rules and regulations of MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its employees in
Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required
to join the MPF scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and are charged to consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years as at 31 December 2019.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the applicable
regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the local government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the
schemes and costs charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contribution payable to the schemes by the Group at
designated rates according to the rules of the schemes.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
knowledge of its Directors at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set
out in Note 46 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors
Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

China
16 March 2020

Directors’ Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WA R (E sy

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunny
Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
116 to 274, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

HREZEHR

Independent Auditor’s Report
B R RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREMMEEEREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables & 5 f& U A B B 7 (h

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
loss (‘ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period.

EREZREFIEY BEEEAHUBHRRNHNERNE - A
REREHRTE BEREEZREFENEREEESR
(TTRMEEERD KSR TBABMERE MG O&R
B E PRI BB LRERS —HRREAFE -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounting to RMB8,358,303,000, which
represented approximately 27% of total assets of the
Group. Details of trade receivables are set out in Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

A—E—NF+-_A=+—H > BEENEZEKRZFEF
A ARS,358,303,00070 ' A EEELEEND
27% - B SR IAERNF BN A iR R KI7E26 ©

As disclosed in Note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on
provision matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. In addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

WERE IS MARMEI7 (D) AT - EEEEEEABHA
BERUBREANSEBBALTOMA  FRRERMEREL
B EZRRREEEFERNRREEREE - RENERX
XDER BESEELBRIEBARBHRSHHEHNEDN
o WIRBAEEEMETHE - I HREERENE
S YR AER A EEREERS -

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

BIAHE S RKSRRBERN ERERERDT

e Understanding the internal controls related to
providing allowance under ECL model;

s BRERHBEEBEREATHBYERBN BT

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at 31
December 2019, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with supporting
documents;

o RFREEERREREREEILMERINERNT
it ARSI EE R B ERA TR X - i
—E-NAFTZRA=T-HNEZREFIEETRE S
ORI,

e Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019, including their
identification of credit impaired trade receivables,
the reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the remaining trade debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix, and the basis of estimated
loss rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and

s HREHEARE_T-NAFT_A=t—HNEZE
WHIREEBRBEENRBENAE - BREEELHER
BENE ZBUGRIAN B - HHE S 5 RGBT R
ERERNG DB ARMARNAEN - AREMFEE
ERMEFBRAXNKE (2EELENXMAEEE
) R

e FEvaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in Notes 26 and
37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

o ARG M BWmKMFT26F137(0) P E M E 5 EIKKIE
RERHEHRE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R AR E

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B

We

M %A

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We
that

also provide those charged with governance with a statement
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaRkEMaEElER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z2 —ZF— 1F+=-HA=+—HIFFZ

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETTT
Revenue HA 5,6 37,848,704 25,931,852
Cost of sales $5& kA (30,098,050) (21,018,737)
Gross profit FF) 7,750,654 4,913,115
Other income E {4z 7(a) 405,502 467,024
Other gains and losses H bz & &8 7(b) (200,615) (292,979)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
RIEHEEEERGE/REREE - OkRER (10,899) (3,851)
Selling and distribution expenses $8% & 7 5 X (278,616) (209,872)
Research and development expenditure ff 255 32 (2,209,337) (1,362,345)
Administrative expenses 17 3 (650,410) (433,894)
Share of results of associates D& A BRI ¥4 19 (5,501) (23,787)
Finance costs @& XA 8 (250,438) (202,137)
Profit before tax B & 51 s F1 4,550,340 2,851,274
Income tax expense FT5 %5 % 9 (530,965) (338,595)
Profit for the year F A& F| 10 4,019,375 2,512,679
Other comprehensive (expense) income H 2 H (B ) W&
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or 10ss:
TEEN A HEEEmAEA -
Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income
BARBEAREMEERGSNER TARENRALEREE - (54,065)
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or l0ss:
HiZrA[EF D EE B mayEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation from foreign operations
BMEBINERSPIEENER 8 (1,512) 2,137
Other comprehensive expense for the year A H b 2 HEBI X (1,512) (51,928)
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 E U 4458 4,017,863 2,460,751
Profit for the year attributable to: FE{EE A F
Owners of the Company A2 AR E 3,991,298 2,490,872
Non-controlling interests JE# i %5 28,077 21,807
4,019,375 2,512,679
Total comprehensive income attributable to: fE{L & W 54858 :
Owners of the Company A2 A% E 3,989,331 2,438,083
Non-controlling interests JE# i %5 28,532 22,668
4,017,863 2,460,751
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) &R & H] — E& (ARES) 12 364.81 227.92
— Diluted (RMB cents) —BE(ARES) 12 364.19 227.25
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 R=F—hF+=-HA=+—H

31/12/2019 31/12/2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
t=-A=+—H t-A=+—H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET R ARBTTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥REI&EE

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - #23 & 3% & 14 6,566,745 4,522,741
Right-of-use assets f A& & & 15 402,743 =
Prepaid lease payments T8 FH & 16 - 213,823
Investment properties ¥ & 13 17 45,298 49,689
Intangible assets & & 18 419,163 348,821
Interests in associates FAB & A 7] H i & 19 683 100,808
Deferred tax assets #EIERIIE & B 20 131,178 42,599
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

BT  MBERRBE TR 21 315,395 401,342
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use right

B EREE X MNNES 21 24,831 -

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (‘FVTOCI") At Ert AH b2 E

(MMBRAREAEMEEYE ) AR TA 22 112,183 106,583
Debt instruments at amortised cost & #k$HK ANt 2 MEE T A 23 27,962 54,479
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”)

BAREFARR ([BAREFABRDNEREE 24 185,147 235,085
Derivative financial assets $T4 & @& E 28 13,654 7,799
Goodwill 2 44 2,119 =
8,247,101 6,083,769
CURRENT ASSETS R#&E
Inventories 7 & 25 5,145,962 3,073,922
Trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 I B th & W R IE R IE R FRIE 26 9,629,684 6,231,486
Prepaid lease payments T8 FH & 16 - 5,581
Tax recoverable B Uy B F 18 = 111,863
Derivative financial assets 74 & @& E 28 13,415 38,986
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BARBEF A RN EREE 24 5,662,808 4,759,582
Debt instruments at amortised cost R Ek$HK ANt S MEE LA 23 55,749 54,915
Amount due from a related party f&U 8= A £ 718 42(c) - 3,032
Pledged bank deposits 2 iR 1T1ER 27 6,113 214,708
Short term fixed deposits 58 #f & #3173 27 15,000 20,000
Bank balances and cash $R1745 8 MR & 27 1,917,239 2,254,299
22,445,970 16,768,374
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRIR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 R=F—hF+=-HA=+—H

31/12/2019 31/12/2018
—F-hF —F—\F
t=A=+-8| +=A=t-~

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES REI& &

Trade and other payables & 5 & E { & {7 18 29 11,321,586 7,063,861
Amounts due to related parties f&{f 8 A 7 42(c) 7,498 8,978
Derivative financial liabilities T4 £ @& & 28 1,430 741
Lease liabilities — current portion & & & — BlEiE o 32 38,140 =
Tax payable FE{HF:IE 49,881 -
Bank borrowings $R17EE 31 1,118,572 1,482,405
Contract liabilities & # & & 30 83,202 110,281
Deferred income — current portion #EIEW A — BIHEEE D 33 10,106 11,175
12,630,415 8,677,441
NET CURRENT ASSETS HRE & EFE 9,815,555 8,090,933
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & ERREAE 18,062,656 14,174,702
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥R8 & &
Deferred tax liabilities #EiEFE & & 20 684,836 403,328
Derivative financial liabilities $T4 4 @l 8 & 28 - 2,682
Lease liabilities — non-current portion & & & — EENEAZE 5 32 122,466 =
Long term payables = &1 7118 29 299,209 330,452
Deferred income — non-current portion JEIEUT A — FEBNHAZE D 33 73,894 70,113
Bonds payable FEff{& %5 34 4,156,074 4,079,983
5,336,479 4,886,558
NET ASSETS ¥ EE& 12,726,177 9,288,144
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B 7 {8
Share capital f%7x 35 105,163 105,163
Reserves fi& 12,447,724 9,128,934
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2N 2 &1 A% 5 fE (L #E 25 12,552,887 9,234,097
Non-controlling interests JF{Z i %S 173,290 54,047
TOTAL EQUITY #4858 12,726,177 9,288,144

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 274 were #HRE116EF274B Vg AMBREREES
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 RZ=Z =T F = F+5 A REETIE - I

March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: B TIEEREKRES
Mr. YE Liaoning Mr. SUN Yang
ERELE BREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EE
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At 1 January 2018 (restated)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #% —ZE— W F+ - A=1—HIFF/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARRRES

Shares held

under share
award FVTOCI | Translation

scheme

RERAR
ERitdl
BRNRG
RMB'000
AREFT

Non-
controlling
interests

R=F-)\5-A-R(E5)) 105,177 166,521 149,800 31,003 916 328,767 (144,883) 49,938 35218 4121 6,795,193 7,521,771 30,690 7,552,461
Profit for the year Z£/EF| - = = = = = = = = - 2490872 2490872 21807 2,512,679
Qther comprehensive (expense) income

for the year
EREMRE (RR) e - - - - - - - - (54,009 1276 - [52,789) 81 (51929)
Total comprenensive (expense) income

for the year
FREE () hagE - - - - - - - - (54,069 1276 2490872 2438083 22,668 2,460,751
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERN R HEERD - - - - - - (78,272) - - - - (81 - (1821
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments AL EREERHZHFE - - - - - - - BiR - - - %1% - %1%
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERHZEHEBRORG - - - - - - 91,058 (88,178 - - (2,880) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA A - - - - - - - - - - - - 689 689
Dividends paid EffR& - (155486) - - - - - - - - (69831 (125,117) - ([25117)
Dividends received under share award scheme
RIERHREEMRNRS, - 2680 - - - - - - - - - 2,680 - 2,680
Repurchase of ordinary shares &3&i{E%E (14) (11,035 - - - - - - - - - (11,049 - (11,049
Release of general risk reserve — BB EEERH = - - - - 119 - - - - - [7.131) - (7.131)
Appropriation & - - - - - 89,080 - - - - (89,080 - - -
At 31 December 2018
R=F-\F+=A=1-H 105,163 2680 149800 31,008 916 410716 (132,097) 54,892 (18,847) 5307 8624474 9,234,097 54,047 9,288,144
Remeasurement of right-of-use assets (‘ROU')
ENHEERELE (FRE]) - - - - - - = = = = 2929 (299 - (2,929)
At 1 January 2019 (restated)
RZE-NE-A-R (85 105,163 2,680 149,800 31,003 916 410,716 (132,097) 54,892 (18,847) 5307 8,621,545 9,231,168 54,047 9,285,215
Profit for the year R = = = = = = - - = - 3991298 3,991,298 28,077 4,019,375
Qther comprehensive (expense) income

for the year
EREMRE (L) e - - - - - - - - - (1,967) - (1,967) 455 (1512)
Total comprehensive (expense) income

for the year
EM2E (AR hagE - - - - - - - - - (1967) 3,991,208 3,989,331 2853 4,017,863
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERGRETHEERA - - - - - - (170,255) - - - - (170255) - (170,259)
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments
BRI EREERA A - - - - - - - 123808 - - - 123,808 - 123,808
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERH B HBRORG - - - - - - 84745 (96,469 - - e - - -
Dividends paid (Note 11) ERRE (izE11) - (2680 - - - - - - - - 60331 (62301) - (62301)
Dividends received under share award scheme
RIERH B EMRNRS - 1846 - - - - - - - - - 1,846 - 1846
Divicend paid to non-controling interests (NCI)
SR SR (SRR ) MRS - - - - - - - - - - - - (490) (490)
Capital contribution from NCI FE£2R &+ & - - - - - - - - - - - - 18,847 18,847
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 44)
WE-—FHEAR (Fia) - - - - - - - - - - - - T4 7254
Appropriation E5 = - - - - 1669% - - - - [16,69) - - -
At 31 December 2019
RZE-NE+=A=1-H 105,163 1,846 149,800 31,003 916 427412 (217,607) 82,287 (18,847) 3430 11,987,534 12,562,887 173290 12,726,177
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERGBHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z —E— 1 F+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

Notes:

(@)

120

The statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve are
non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves is determined by the
board of directors of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
expand the existing operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund.
These reserves are non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves
are determined by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Other reserves can be used to
make up for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

The Group irrevocably elected to designate certain investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI and the FVTOCI reserve is related to the gains
or losses arising from the changes in fair value of the designated equity
investments recognised in other comprehensive income.

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 B2 —ZE— N4+ —-A=+—HI FF

OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & EE

2019
—E-hF

RMB’ 000
ARMBT T

2018
—ET-N\F
RMB’ 000
AREEFIT

Profit before tax BR %t 5l s £ 4,550,340 2,851,274
Adjustments for: FZ :
Share of results of associates 7 {5H# <A 7] £ 4 5,501 23,787
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #7% - #82 & R &I E 1,171,430 771,411
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# AEEEITE 46,499 -
Depreciation of investment properties & WETE 4,391 4,391
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
TESRITAQNAEEHHERE (KRH) - FHE 17,723 (73,022)
Gain on fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
RAREFABRNEREEAABE KR (49,357) (3,455)
Release of prepaid lease payments T&81: & fi# k& - 4,842
Amortisation of intangible assets & 2= & 55,558 43,603
Allowance for inventories 17 & # & 155,488 60,034
Impairment loss under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
RIEREEEBREXEMRERE - NRED 10,899 3,851
Impairment loss of interest in associate F B A B 25 KR E €18 62,866 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEWE - B RREBER 44,972 1,914
Gain on disposal of land use right Hi & + {58 F #E Uk 5 - (1,798)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A FlUkES - (857)
Loss on deemed disposal of interests in an associate
RIEHE —[EEE QB ERmE /I EE 5,691 -
Expense recognised in respect of share award scheme
AR 7 2R T & i #E R 8 2 123,808 93,132
Release of deferred income #E fE 4 A f7 (50,263) (43,863)
Interest income from short term fixed deposits and bank balances
R HAE BATE A MR T A AR B A (28,058) (15,104)
Interest income from pledged bank deposits 2 & 1R 5R 1777 K F B U A (458) (2,305)
Interest income from debt instruments f&# T A5 24 A (10,138) (10,503)
Investment income from unlisted financial products
REFLTMEEERIZRERA (189,831) (181,271)
Finance costs @& B 7 250,438 202,137
Net foreign exchange loss SN 518 /%58 96,602 305,052
Loss on disposal of debt instruments at FVTPL
HERARBEFABRNERTAEE 856 -
Gain on lease termination FAE 4R | F Iz (732) =
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEELEPINKLEHRIRE 6,274,225 4,033,250
Increase in inventories TF &% AN (2,207,554) (519,925)
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 N Hoh e W R TE N TR A FRIA I AN (3,389,748) (620,028)
Decrease (increase) in amount due from a related party
FEUS B A ERIER A (35 n) 3,032 (222)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K H th & <t k& 38 A 4,143,616 847,014
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities & #)& & B4 ) & 1 (27,079) 34,231
Increase in deferred income i ZE U A 1 f 52,975 51,171
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to related parties
FESTRAE A T 3I8 CRl2) 320 (1,480) 4,891
Cash generated from operations #& & /EE) TSR & 4,847,987 3,830,382
Income taxes paid 215 Fr{5Fi 7118 (186,365) (262,490)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES && ZB TSR €38 4,661,622 3,567,892
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z2 —ZF— 1F+=-HA=+—HIFFZ

INVESTING ACTIVITIES &/ E

2019
—E-hF

RMB’ 000
AR®T R

2018
—N\F
RMB’ 000
ARBTTT

Placement of short term fixed deposits 17752 8 & Hi 17 7% (3,442,918) (3,111,499)
Withdrawal of short term fixed deposits #2H 52 8 & 875 51 3,447,918 3,111,499
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B8 & #)3 - #22 & & (2,770,095) (2,134,098)
Payments for leasehold lands 8 & £ i< 5k (30,892) (80,144)
Payment for intangible assets & E R (39,120) (45,844)
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 R 17173 (9,328) (720,656)
Release of pledged bank deposits f# k% B I R1 717K 217,923 646,236
Purchases of unlisted financial products W& JE € B E G (51,248,850) (46,832,550)
Release of unlisted financial products f#43F_F 4 BlE S 50,391,750 44,352,820
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

SUEEYE  BELRRBDTHNZS (302,987) (357,307)
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use right

B L EREE RS (24,831) =
Purchase of debt instruments at FVTPL WEEIZ A A Bt ABRSHEHS T A - (149,236)
Purchase of fund investments at FVTPL WiEIZ AR BT ABEMESIRE - (316,965)
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised cost Wi % $4pk AN 51 8 B EE LA (27,738) (101,079)
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL YESIZ A 7 (BTt A B MR AERE (15,750) (20,000)
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI

WERAREF AR EEKENESET A (5,600) (28,000)
Interest and investment income received B W # & & E WA 235,997 236,212
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - W NREAEHIEA 10,258 29,779
Proceeds from disposal of land use right & £ 3 {# B4 Fr 15 ZUB - 25,139
Proceeds from disposal of debt instruments at FVTPL

HERAR B ABRNEETEMGRIE 75,719 -
Repayment from debt instruments at amortised cost

RE KA ENEE T ENERNKIE 55,798 -
Disposal of subsidiaries &/ E A Al - (3,597)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary 48— =18 A 7] 8938 & 7 L F R (5,176) =
Investment in an associate 72— B2 A Al 2% E (67,842) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & F8 T AR FE (3,555,764) (5,499,290)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 B2 —ZE— N4+ —-A=+—HI FF

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\%F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBTT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EE

Interest paid 2 Fl & (239,531) (124,517)
Dividends paid EfJi% 28 (623,011) (725,117)
Dividends paid to NCI & 1 JE1ZE R 25 O A% 8. (490) -
New bank borrowings raised #i&iE17EE 3,071,539 1,898,175
Repayment of bank borrowings EZRI1TEE (3,453,315) (1,810,381)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHE A E (46,988) -
Dividends received under share award scheme #8#5 #& {7 28 B 5t 2] U B &9 AR =, 1,846 2,680
Purchase of shares under share award scheme 1815 i {7 22Eh=t 2 88 B A% (7 (170,255) (78,272)
Proceeds from bond issuance &% % 17FT15 B - 3,832,145
Payment for transaction costs of issue of bond 3z {~{& % 317 HI 3 5 Bk A - (26,885)
Payment on repurchase of shares %17 [al i& k18 - (11,049)
Capital contribution from non-controlling interest of a subsidiary

R—RKWE R R R EREGREE 18,847 =
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

MEES (FTA) IEREFHE (1,441,358) 2,956,779
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBELSHEER ORD) BmFHE (335,500) 1,025,381

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
R—B—HNRERRELEEEE 2,254,299 1,226,877

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes E X & B S/ & (1,560) 2,041

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
RT-A=+t—HNRERRLEEEE -
represented by bank balances and cash ASE1T45 8 IR G 25 1,917,239 2,254,299
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z —E— 1 F+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

124

GENERAL

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (“The
Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
September 2006 as an exempted company under the Companies
Law Chapter 21 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 15 June 2007.
Its ultimate holding and parent company is Sun Xu Limited, a
private limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Wang Wenijian, also a Director
of the Company. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of designing, researching and developing,
manufacturing and selling of optical and optical related products
and scientific instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI HRAR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 B2 —ZE— N4+ —-A=+—HI FF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z2 —ZF— 1F+=-HA=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EEE%%T&%M%ET%;‘%E 7%
]

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (‘HKAS 177”), and
the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1
January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and measured right-of-use assets at the carrying
amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since commencement
dates, but discounted using the incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities at the date of initial application by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening retained profits
and comparative information has not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI HRAR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 B2 —ZE— N4+ —-A=+—HI FF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following practical
expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to
the respective lease contracts:

i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 months of
the date of initial application;

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied is 4.78%.

BREUBHELERE167EE (&)
EBEHA ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z2 —ZF— 1F+=-HA=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EAHE REETERBYH
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEER ([FEMBHRE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AR ) (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) ERMKHREELE165KHA T (8)
As a lessee (Continued) EAEFAN (&)

At 1 January
2019
R=TB-—NEF

—-B—H
RMB’000
ARBT

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018

RZZB-—NFTZA=T—BRENLCEHERE 155,164
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental borrowing rates
RIEBESEEMNEWHRNEEARE 133,295
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases il : R — LHHEE (1,632)
Recognition exemption — low value assets (excluding short-term leases of
low value leases) R R — EEEEE (TR2EEEEHENEHEE) (446)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R=—Z—NF— A —HMNHEE&E 131,217

Analysed as 21T 4

Current B1EA 38,666
Non-current FEENER 92,551
131,217
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1 RZZE-—NWF—FR—HERAEREEER
January 2019 comprises the following: EEREKIT :

Right-of-use
assets

EHREE
RMB’000
ARBT

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases recognised upon application of HKFRS 16

RERB BT BERELENFE16RERRRCEHERFANERAEEE 128,288

Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BIEN A ENREFH 48 (a) 219,404

Adjustments on rental deposits at 1 January 2019

20191 A1 B HHEERSIELN AR (b) 53
347,745
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI HRAR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 B2 —ZE— N4+ —-A=+—HI FF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(@)

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC for own used
properties were classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31
December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current
and non-current portion of prepaid lease payments amounting
to RMB5,581,000 and RMB213,823,000 respectively were
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied under other receivables.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
of the underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect the
discounting effect at transition. Accordingly, the discounting
effect of RMB53,000 was adjusted to refundable rental
deposits paid and right-of-use assets.

FRMBHREENE1657HE (&)

1ERAENA ()

@ R—E—NFE+=-_A=+—8 88
MEETERBEE T TN R S
RENEE - REREBHBHRESE
BIZE 16581 - TEfTHH 2 /9 BN E R IEED
BB 7 Bl A A R#5,581,000 7T & A
R#213,823,0007T ' HEH D EEE
RAEERE -

(o) RNIERBEBYBHMEERAE 165
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BEBSSTEAF1I7THRAE T £
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z2 —ZF— 1F+=-HA=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. J?”E;Hi%ﬁﬁ N
=

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the
Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition for
leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases
in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application
and comparative information has not been restated.

The following table summarises the impact of transition to HKFRS
16 on retained profits at 1 January 2019.

Retained profits & & Z #l
Net additional expenses incurred when measuring right-of-use
assets since lease commencement date under HKFRS 16
BEBMBRELERE165E FTHER K B HALEFE
15 A & 2 R 2 AR BV BESNRA SOUFHE

FRVBHREENE1657HE (&)
TERH A

RIBEE S5 8|S 2R 516 5% 69 B R &
X AREEARAKERHEANEE
BEELEARAE  EAEERERAY
EREFEMHRELEME16RHZZTR
AR BYEEILEER -

TERBAR_ZE-NEFEF-—HA—BBEESD

BB HREEREIHFERERNNZ
£

Impact of
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2